P
y A
Lt
|
|1 ¥
_\
w L
» '
4 ;
‘ 2
' i
B3
i %
. §
&
F 3 '
kS K
< H
’ ;
N .
‘1

(Third day)

PUBLIC HEARING
Before

SENATE COMMITTEE ON
" REVISION AND AMENDMENT OF LAWS

On

SENATE BILL NO. 272 - WATER BOND ACT
SENATE BILL NO. 273 - On-RIVER WATER SUPPLY LAW, 1957

Held: -

June 21, 1957
Assembly Chamber
State House
Trenton, New Jersey

MEMBERS OF COMMITTEE PRESENT:
SENATOR WAYNE DUMONT, JR., (Chairman)
SENATOR ROBERT C. CRANE
SENATOR DONAL C. FOX

a2, N0, 37 v,
o o o« «w

New J@fsey State Lé%nra-}'y |







INDEX _OF __SPEAKERS = Page

e e

Senator Rgbert Ce Crane
(reading letters from !
Paul M. VanWegen, President Stony Brook—Millstone

watersheds Asseciati@n, and from | s 1
GQOPQG Ra Shanklin, Chief Englneer and Acting Director,‘;u S
Division of Water Policy and Supply S 2
Henry G. P. Coates L | ""_l‘?
Stony BrookwMillstone Watersheds ASSOClatlon »

Malcolm Crooks S BT v e ~v23.
Executive Director, St@ny Breok~Millstone Watersheds L ‘
Association _ : :

‘Fréd VanDeventer D . . 1ta
-Princetonr. ‘ : S L R
Edward L. Mownt .~ .~ 7Aoo

Mercer County Engineer L T . S R
. Frank J. Black . . a2ra
‘ Member, Mercer cgunty Board of Freehclders R RS . -

Director, Mercer County Industrial Commissimn

Harold Coieman o o o R R ,'32;A,.
‘representing: Mayor and Tawnship C@mmittee of Township S
of Lawrence o . -

I. Russell: Riker - PR T ,517, 36-A"',,
Trustee, Stony Breok-Millstone Watersheds Assaciat1on S
Fred Rasweiler |

Member; Hopeweil Tewnghlp Committee,,m R | o ,57jA,
Diréctor, Stony Br@ok—Millstene Watersheds‘Asseciation A

Charles K. Agle T : ' : ' - : - ‘ . 6‘8*_‘A' '»
Planning Consultant and.Architect v ‘ L .
Cassel Ruhlman - ' L ' o , 1T A
, Assistant Aiterney, Barough mf Pennington S
Alfred Test . o | L . 79aA
Chairman, Cit;zensf Committee fer a S@und Water Plan : o
Mrs. Ann‘Hnghey ,_ T "-’-,‘- o ;‘ R o A
'speaking as a citizen o S : S R
Dr. Werner Schmidt ; R . :_v ,._  ‘.,iIOh.A ;g

Assistant Professor of Civil Engineering,
Princeton Uhiversity : .

N, A A2
3% 3 5% i







| SENATOR WAYNE DUMONT, JR. (THE CHAIRMAN): We will start
this mofnfngfs“heafing With tﬁe“inserfion of two letters into
the record which Senator Crane will read. ’

SENATQR ROBERT C. CRANE The first letter is from
Mf;oPeﬁifM;.Vénwegen; Presidentvof the Stony\Brook-Millstone
wetefshedslAseooiationgff | . | '

(Reading)b o

_ “In response to a question from Senator Crane
,last Thursday I said our Association had never had.
'a water expert as an employee. .That is correct but

lest it detract from any merit our presentation
‘might otherwise have, 1 would like to add the
followxnga'

"Cur executive director, a full-time employee,»
"holds a graduate degree in conservation. While
this does not make him an expert on ‘water, he is
‘familiar with all phases of conservation and a very
capable director of our affairs. There are also -
members of the Association with outstanding (some
with 1nternationa1) engineering records who have
voluntarily consulted with us as need arises. Add
to these the many eminently qualified eng;neere,
hydrologists and geologists with whom we have con-
sulted in State and Federal Service, and from Rutgers
and Princeton Universities, as well as private
individuals. For our whole existence we have had
the finest kind of cooperation from such individnals
and organlzations. o S . . a

v “I w>u1d like to reiterate a very etrong con-

viction. This parade of texpertst! by the. proponents

- obscures the real issues of the matter., Their most
significant testimony has been in the realm of
opinion rather than fact. The facts being asked for are
take lines at different elevations and borings to
determine the practicability of.a dam site as well as
to estimate its cost: These facts can only be gotten
on the ground, all of the expert topinion!' to the
contrary notwithstanding. it is our, judgment that

people want and are entitled to facts, not opinion,

" before voting for a bond issue on huge pr‘ojecte°

: "We be11eve the possible recharge from small'

, multiple purpose dams have tremendous. possibilities°
To this end we would like -to see an appropriation
for the. Department of Conservation and Economic

_ Development to participate with the United States‘ -

> ‘_ 1






‘Department of Agriculture and ourselves in trying
Qut two or three as-a pilot progect. _

“we believe this shomld ‘be part of a $2 milli@n ,
_g(our guess} appropriation for the detailed engineering
- - and geological investigations that. 'are needed for the
~ whole Raritan Watershed. We feel that it is important
‘that !pre-design’ studies be made at the various S
reservoir sites in the entire basin before any one
site is- approved for construction. For only after. this
information is at hand can a- truly integrated and. well- .
- planned. developmznt of Raritan water be accomplished.
The relative merits of the small dams and the larger
ones. should be weighed at. all locatians by such studiese<:

. : "Ybu gentlemen seem determined to come up With somen'
thing constructive, I think you willg and- I admire yeu
for the splendid job yaa are doing, -

Cordially ycurs,;. :
/ Paml ‘M. Vanwegen
President.. :

\;i1gThe second is® a letter from George Re Shanklin9 Chief  -“
'Engineer and Acting Director of the Division of Water P@licy and’,

‘taking‘of water from tha Raritan by the Middlesex C@unty trunk
sawer. Since many of us are not engineers, 1 thank there are
some parts of this letter which we can skipg but its entire
contents will be in the record. ‘ o

| (Reading) | o

"Dear Senator Dumont»

"In reply to the request submitted to me at the
_legislative hearing on June 13 relative to the above
water legislation bills by Senator Edward J.: O”Mﬁfag,

~ Counsel for the Citizens! Committee for a Sound Water o
Policy, I am pleased to submit the following report on
diversion on the lower- Raritan River by the Middlesex
County trunk sewer. e v

o "According te informatlon given me by Mr, Charles
Je Kupper, Engineer for the Middlesex County Sewerage

- Authority, the 1951 Medcalf and Eddy report on this
‘trunk sewer listed the following estimates of @ffluent
sewage to be discharged into the trunk sewer by the
various participants. i _ .

. It@s quite a technical letter and 1t has to do ‘with the,_:'






Sewage

"Source o : ischar'e (MGD) | Comm@ﬂtg

uSomefset County Line to five Mile (Fieldville) Dam )

Plainfield Joint : ;h B ~ Principally served by
Meeting - - ’ C a - Plainfield-Union W, Co.

S. Bound Brook Boro. . VOaZ O Bound Brook W. Co. from

Bound Brock Boro. 0.6 . storage reservoir on
R e oo o Middle. Brook
‘Elizabethtown W. CooCons,
Delaware & Raritan Canal

'Middiésex Bord.;
Bakel ite Cerp,, _

Five Mile ‘Dam_ to Raritan»wfi'”
Cjtyvof Naw'BrunSW1ck,

St@rage reservoir on
v Lawrence. Brook and Del,
' ) S S ‘& Raritan Canal

‘Highland Park Boro, 0,8 - Elizabethtown W.Co.Cons.

Raritan (Edison) Twp, 1.6 7 L Elizabethtown W.Co.Cons.
s v municipal wells and

o o : el o Middlesex W. Co.

Metuchen Boro.. . 0.65 ' Middlesex W. Co.

Hayden Chemical Co. 0.30 - B Private wells

"National Lead Co. Lo5 B Private wells

Catalin Co. Oel : - Source not known

South River

Mﬁnicipal well supply

South River Boro. 1.1 '
Sayreville Boro. = 0.6 Perth Amboy well supply
Peter J.—Schweitzer v 26l . ‘Private wells
e Fugoy 0.6 L Private wells
. ! 0.07 . Source not kunown
Hercules Powder Coa ?.0 : Private wells

% New customer not listed in MEdcalf and Eddy rep@rte

"For clarityy the sewage effiuent diseharges have been
tabulated in thiee reaches:=- Somerset County line to Fieldville
Dam wherein the natural stream flow may be considered to be .
suitable for industrial use; the tidal reach from head of tide
at the Fieldville Dam to the Raritan Bay and South Riwers one .
of the major tributaries of. ‘the Raritan Basin which joins the
lower river downstream of New Brunswick.

”From the above tabulations it is apparent that no
riparian water from the lower river is to be discharged at
present into the trunk sewer. Under !Comments,? I have -
attempted to summarize briefly the sources from which I under-
stand the participants obtain the water which is to be discharged
into the trunk sewer as sewage effluent, It is to be noted that.
such water is obtained from: groundmwater sources in the Plain-
field and South River areas, from the Middle Brook storage
reservoir of the Bound Brook Water Company, from the Farrington
storage reservoir on Lawrence Brook of the City of New Brunswick,
from the Delaware and Raritan Canal and from the public water
supply system of the Elizabethtown Water Company. which obtains
its supply from the Delaware and Raritan Canal and from river
intakes on ‘the Raritan and. Millstane Rivers at their canfluenceo_
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The municxpal sewage effluent is derived from existing public
water supplies and possibly also from some private industrial
wells. The industrial water on South River and the lower
river below Fieldville Dam is from groundnwater sources with
possibly one or two small exceptions. The Bakelite Corpor-
. ation does have a river intake for riparian use of Raritan
“water upstream of the Fieldville Dam but such water, I under-
stand, is used solely for fire protectionov The water - :
discharged into the trunk sewer is part of the supply
purchased from the Delaware and Raritan Canal. “The company
also has wells which I understand are not used at presentm
"The flow of the lower river will, of course, be reduced .
by the amount of sewage which was formerly discharged into it
by local treatment plants. But, as previdusly stated, there
does not appear to be any appreciable divers;on of what is
truly ripar:an watez‘a : :
Yours very truly,,'- v
s/ George R. Shanklin |
Chief Engineer and Acting Dlreotor "

SBNATOR-DUMONT{‘ Thank you very muoh, Senator,Craneg;“
Now,‘Mr;so Ann Hughey was here for two days.waitingffof hef}
opportunity tottestify, dnd I wonder-ifléhe‘isvhefa todayal
' Well, she will be given an opportunzty if she does come inj
later. I thought that at long last she could be given thet’
opportunity to be the first witness°
We will start then, with Henry G; P. Coates of the
Stony Brook-Millstone Watersheds Associationa Mr. Coatesn-
" HENRY G vtP.> COATE S: Senator Dumont,
Senator Cranegi I reside in Hightstown and'I am not intéreétéd“f
- as a_léndowner in any of these proposed pPOJects in the Stony -
‘Brook érea. 1 speak for the Stony Brooanlllstone Watersheds
| Associationo__
One of the ingredients of desirable legislatlon from the
| standpoint of all personszconcerned, is»that it ‘have sound |

foundations.






The Water Resources Advisory Committee was appointed'by the
Honorable Joseph Es» McLean, Comm1531oner of the Department of '
Conservation and Economic Development in September 1956.

On October 31, l956,-the New Jersey Water Resources
lAdvlsory Committee formulated a statement of guiding pfinciples,
one of which was No. 2: |

: "We would want to polnt to the immedlate
acquisition of the sites necessary to the
complete program to avoid higher costs later
and to minimize Iinconvenience to the public.
Cost estimates of such acquisitions will be
needed it :

It will be suggested by other speakers for the Stony Brook=
Mlllstone Watersheds Association that it is the belief of that
Association that the Committee has not done all the homework
that should be done befofe the Legislature submits such an

lmpoftant_questlon to the public for a vote. It is only |

- - necessary to point out_that the Committee uses the phfase

“immediate'acquisition of thefsiteslnecessary to the complete
program," and then to compare that statement of a gulding
principle with the limlted scope of the present bllls to flnd
that the program. suggested to the people, and which the
Leglslature‘is asked to enact, is but a partlal effort and
in complete disregard of what the_Commlttee itself has indicated .
as its second guiding pr1nc1ple. .
This is no 1mmed1ate solutlon and two dams to . supply one
part of this State do not constitute a complete program.
Recommendation NG. 2 of the Committeets Report says:
"The 10 billion gellon‘stony Brook Reservoir,
located about two miles west of Princeton,
should be constructed two to.five years after
Spruce Run is completed unless the demand for

‘water indicates that an earlier construction
of this reservoir is required," ~
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If the Stony Broék reservoir is}é two ta;fiﬁé year ;
situatipnvafteTFSpruce Run is complete, why Such;haste,and
why such incomplete physical datag |

The third guiding prinéiple,yander’date of October 31,
1956, reads as followss | | | | |
"we regafd it impcrtaht to pro?ide cbmplete,
satisfactory assurance to up-river counties that
there would be no lowering of their optimum lake
and stream levels and that such counties would
always have sufficient water for the1r own needs
and. growth," ’ : .

This established, that pdlicy,would be to assure uprivéf
counties that their water needs'would not be’adversely
affécted by taking from them-iake and stream water which they
could not recapture. However, a study of the biils points to
the fact that no consideration is being given whatevér in
their content to the situation in Mercer Couﬁty; where it is
as important as it is anywhere elséy that water bevmadé-avaii-‘
able for industrial and other purposes. It is frue-that in
parts of the bills the‘suggesticn is made tha% the water wbuld
be madebavailablé to all personé, COrporatiqns3 etc., Wﬁé |
applied, but the plain émphasis of the bills is to provide
water fér the use of upstate'céunties and there’appearé‘to;be
a disregard'of basic needs of the home Cbunfy of Mercer, so
fafvas its wéter needs are concerned. While Mercer Couniy'
is not specifically excluded by language in the bills, it is
nevertheless excluded by infereﬁce, Further, the clear
1mpact of Mr, Shankiln!s testimony of last week ‘was that the

 needs and demands of Lhe users to the north of Mercer County

would as a matter of pollcy, be first served.
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Aﬁother guxdlng principle of the Commlttee 13 set f@rth
in No. 11, which is as followss: ' | : '
"We want to achieve the maximum of
protection against soil. erosion. - In these
and in other respects we want to give con-
sideration to the federal aid which may be
available for such pmrposeso“ ‘ :

This guidlng principle talks abgut pratection against soil
erosion and giving consxderati@n to faderalvaidgn The plain
truth of the matter is that this Committee has disregarded»fhe
work ;f-fhé A550ciation f@r which i{speék;‘ Despite the fact
that the Stony Brook~M&llst0ne Watersheds Associat;om had

.progressed to the p01ntvof having federal aid assured for its
conservatzon program and dams9 this Ccmmittee ignored the wcrk
of years, and this. gu;dlng principle is also a mockery in '
view of the record.. Th@rg is mat‘one :eference to sei;
efosion in either biila and itvis.manifest that éhaﬁid:these
reservoirs be‘bﬁiii:iﬁey‘wculdfbe-thﬁngs in being and.ihat‘ |
soilAerosion'programs,woald,be’an'a'hit or miss basis, so far
as these biils-a?e cénCérnéﬁ; fIt'may bé"that‘pfoblemé of
fldodinglhaVe beeﬁ éa?efuikyédnsidéfé& but if so §ﬁére'is’
no factual infarmation that I know of available., | _

MTG 'VanWe gen testified last week that the Stony Brookm‘
Millstone Watersheds Aﬁseciatigng t@gether with ether agenciéé
and iﬁcludingipr@minentlyfﬁhe Dépafiment éf Conservation and
Econémie Development, has beéthUfking7oﬁ‘éoﬁsefvatieﬁ 
reserﬁnirs on the tribmtariesf6f Stény%Bréok;_ IﬁAview ef  B
his. iestimdﬁy'and'the rich.backgrbﬁnd of iﬁformation aifeady'
acquzred would it n@t be the part of W1sd0m and in the best

interests ef all our peop?a to have this thoroughly explered

T
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Abefore:piuﬁging ahead? 'This WatéfﬁhédeASsociation Would‘Welébme
the:Opportﬁnity to aS§£s£;in,a Studylfo félatefits-program to
the needs of the State on their 'xir'ate-r’pfdbiems . And 1 submit "
on its behalf ‘that Federal Aid sheuld not ‘be ignored by
'New Jersey in these matters nor sh@uld the work of thxs"'
'agency, which does not depend on New Jersey tax money, be
thoughtlessly oblzteratedo v o

A fourth guiding principle Was Noo Iu, to the effect that .
'"ahy water supply prej@ct will ba selfwliquidating,". Wh;le it
may be proper in bills:df‘this.natﬁfevio authorize the ﬂse'o£:'
the Siatévs funds fér;the'péy@aﬂt‘@f’hénds ahd £o,provide
that ultimate lévies shall be against the home owners of this
State, this guiding pr1nc1p1e is also mocked in the absence“ v
of any statistical information or evidence that, xndeed these -
projects will ‘be’ self liquidatingo In effect the people of
. New Jersey are being asked to sign a blank check. ‘”

A.further eV1dence of the haste and lack of firm foundaw '
tzon of these. bills is the iact that, despite the importance
| of planning in this State,andJln the various commun;tiesg
»thesedprojectsy which:by'tﬁéif Very'nature requifeTovermall_
plannzng to a great degre69 have not resulted in any sense"
from consultatlon with local planning boards and @ther
.governmental agencies below the State levelo This failure
to consult, in itselfg constitutes an - indlctment of the
program suégested,, 1 would_ further p.omt out that this in
itsélf_is a méjér réa$0m Wﬁﬁ_iherst@ny'Bréok;Millétone5Wé£ér“
sheds Assoéiatieﬁ $hou1dy tc;justify‘itS'existenéag-eppose :
‘the haste with which,th£s progfam’is be1ﬁg put fOrth;.far it o
8 .






is a matter of the record that this Association has instituted
studies over the past two years which it makes'available to
interested planning agencies'thr@ﬁghout its area.

‘To ignore the people who have established these local
planning boards whicﬁ saféguérd‘their interests, and to igm@fe
this Association which has labored to comserve the water and
soil of the area, is unjustifiable and smacks of paternalism.

Wé are not opposed to sound water programs, but we do say
that the Committee has ignored and twisted at lea§t four of its
basic guiding principles, and we urge that the two bills in
question be not adopted for the abové and other reagghs which
will be advanced by other speakers.

In closing, I woulgﬁiie Legislative Committeets attention
to page 1l of the prddeeleﬁ=ﬁiver Water Supply Law of 1957,
There are no specific standards establishedvf§r’the ascertaining
of the amount reasonably contracted to be paid to school
districts and municipalitiés; and it is my view that ﬁhis
portion of the act isblegaliy unsound as now written,

Thank you very much.

SENATOR DUMONT: Mr. Coates, what type of program does
your Association have with regard tovthese'céngervati@n dams
and reserveirs that you speak ab@&t? |

" MR. COATES: Well, I think that Mr. Malcalﬁ Crooks, our
Executive Dire@tof, is better qualified to speak on that
subject than I am. He knows all the details, $enatofo I
dontt want to avoid your questi@n but I am not as familiar
witﬁ those details as he is. I do know that under this 566
act that the Aséociation has engaged with the Departméﬁt of
Economic Development and with the Federal GOvernment and |

9






 ;they’were-ail'éetm£6 §0‘ahead1®n at least two of the dams;
aéEIVﬁnderstand-it9 ha#ing‘goﬁéft0 £he paintfwhére théy7had
Obtained’eaéeméﬁis,,and,sa bno ‘But as to these specific |
detailsg 1 would defer- to Mo Croakso

SENATOR DUMONT- 1 weﬁld lxke, before we go any further,
to note ‘the presence of Senator Donal Fox @f Essex County9 a -

member of the Committeeo

Senator Crane has a questiono

L

SBNATOR CRANE s Mre C@atess just what is your pcsition?
VMRO CQATES° '] am a trustee of<this Watershed Association, ,
SENATOR CRANB‘ And whatvs your normal liveliheadg sir?

M'MRO IQATES& I am an attorney at law. | |
”SBNATOR’CRANE@' Have you had an acquaintance with water :
programs prior to this. time? | | ; '
COATES: I would say only slight,ly, Senator., o
SENATOR CRANEP" Nows I b@lleVE you ‘have the same state;
.ment that I have = probably itﬂs typed up- differentlyo Ih
the sixth paragraph yoa are talking abeut complete programS‘
and the desirability af having a complete one - offered to thea.
people rather than fragmented programso'.l beli@ve thatvwas
yeur point, | |
MR COA’I"‘E;Se YESQ ‘that is so, o
SBNATOR CRANE:" Si:cz9 are ycu aware of the variouS

‘studles that ‘have been undertaken by the- State anﬂ by -

.'federal auth@rltles on Water?

MR CQATES° I am semewhat aware of them9 haV1ng waded

through the 1955 Report Sénatoro B
SENATOR CRANE W@llg do y@a believe itrs fair to state

10






1that if We develeped the Tockﬂs Island Reservoir in the

"lelawareg that wmuld take ten years and weuld you also concede

'“,,that if we wnrked to develap Reund Valley as rapidly as .

N possible that mlght ‘take from five, six or seven years before

- we ceuld take Water from it?

'MR.;GQATES:_ 1 am not familiar with all the engineering

| déia'eﬁlﬁhat. If that is whatvthe engineers say it weuld take;~A_

I Wnuld agree with their est;mates of it, in the absence of . any
contradictory evidenceo ,A_ :'  _ _ . | ‘: : A
| SENATOR CRANEA I believe we do have those statements in

the record. But I wanted to point out to yous sir, that this
very program was one which was suggested iu the TAMS Reportg -
"the TippettSﬁAbbettchCarthyastratten Report, and are you   H,»-~
asking that they brzng eut tha entire plan for the develepment k
of‘the.Raritan River.Basia'bef@re the people are asked;to Judge*f
itp o - : - : . _: 'v‘ }:_, »‘”
| “MR;iCbATEQW” 1 would thinks sir3 that that would be the5v.h
| part of wisdem in New Jerseyo We have had a sad experience .
with ‘Chimney Rock. The people voted-it'downo I would think{i_f* H
that unless the people had the full infermatmon thay will o
vote this down. I th;nk’that»you have»to trustfthe peopleig}j  5
_jndgmentrln these'ﬁattér35  1 donﬂt think that you can go 1n‘”
"'with a prcgram that is net complete° What 1 am attempting to
say is th13a we have heard testzmony here that dltimately the
solution may be the Delaware River and that may take ten yearso"
We are in d;re need 0r watery. here is no question of its but :

, thare are many other states in thi$ Unicn which have far

less water than we do and they regulate it far more stringently.f;.: 






| thanjwe:do; and when we compaféiaurusituatidn_With some Qf"

our western stétesfbsitgations,iwé have nowhéreinéar'ﬁhé’problemot
And, theréforeg”l ihiﬁk”that where we haVe‘én‘available ﬁaﬁﬂfafv'“

fesource such as the Delaware River, even 1f it takes f;ve or

ten years, we should be loathe to plunge 1nto programs Wthh H

are not well conceived and;wgll considered° Now, it may be;

that uitimately the wofk of the engineers wiil-developvthaﬁ

this.is aAg6od:sound brogfamo If so, I think then that9 once that"s

establlshed this Watershed Association would be in favor of a

sound program° ‘ ‘ N ' ,‘ |

SENATOR CRANE: We11; .no?ifr, sir, what would you 'co?nsli'der-_ |

a sound pfogram% You'knowVthé”Elizabethtown Water Compaﬁy:

investigated 15 sites on the Raritan for possible small dam
.developmeht.' The TAMSvReport suggested séVen or eight sites,

and now Whitman, Reﬁuardt & Associates, of the,Water Resoarces'

Advisory Committee, has recommended two, Now, Which dr tﬁdse~

programs dd you think'are'sound and look to overﬂall develop-

ment? o | | | : -
”MR.'COATES:' Senator Crane, you compliment me in thlnking
/that 1 could answer”that questxono, 1 do not have enough
background~= _ | ‘ ‘ o

SENATOR CRANE: Mo, I'm tryir‘zg to point out, sir, that

there afe'three different éhOiCes‘as to what migﬁt be con-
sidered a competent program - fifteen, seven or eight9 or two.
Possibly it nght be that 1n.the integration of our water' |
programs throughout the State, I am suggesting that it may
not be necessary to develop more than two reservoirs qn‘the
Raritan. : | | o
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MR CQATES°‘ That may be sog but I thlnk at this point
that the foundations have net been laid._ o

SENATOR CRANEg‘ Wellr then, I Wenld like to get on to the
néxt poihté .n~page E'Qf this release youvhave, it seems to
‘me you are trying to make a point @f haste and incamplete |
:physicaIAdata. What is yeur oplnion of the TippettSfAbbett=
‘.MCCarthy-Stratton Repart? . o -

MR, CQATES= Well Iﬁm not an engineer.l But I wnuld peznt.'
this out to you, Senator, “that this Commlttee was appointed -
With all. due respect to the capabilities of the engineers whov ' 
rpaftlcipated - in September of - 1956 and they come out With a
report just a few months later, and I submlt that this
prellmlnary report is not anywhere nearn- | | ‘

| SENA‘I‘OR CRANE: I'm not referring to ‘that re,port, 1 was
asking yeur opinion’ of the TlppettsfAbbett~MCCarthy~Stratton
Reporto v , . . -

MR C@ATES° We11, IVm not an engineer, Senater.4  

SBNATOR CRANEs Well, it cost 45167,000 and they investi«-‘
- Qated h@th'the groundwa;er-seurces of the.state_and;tha -
- sources from run=of f Waiérés and was beiievéd to be;quite
| compreheﬁsive. In fact, the Army Engineers ‘have’ stated
»that it was cons;dered excellent in every phaseo' _’

MR; COATESg_ Well, you are speaking of the 1955 Report
viS.théi s0? |

 SENATOR CRANE That is correct. Y

"»MR.'CQAIES$: Well,;as I reeall ity there was Just
abgut lh,lines'devoted tq,this Stony-Bron Reservoxr,;n £hat
’Repoftg‘and; as I also'fecgll it, the'figures;in thai'Repbrt7






the facilities for developing thé watef;zand sbifafth;':lt‘
may not be the correct technical term but the cost estiﬁateéf
there were based on a différent basis,1_This ié'éonSidéred to

be raw Water,,

SENATOR CRANEW It offered three different plans fer the]""

development. of the Rarxtan and I ‘was under the lmpression it
went intOithem at quita some lengtha- Perhaps it didnﬂt have‘
more have lh lines in one partlcular sectian With regard to
_ Steny Brook but it certalnly considered these various siteso
”One plan was to prov;de simply regulation of flow in the
—stream, another plan was for regulation of flow in the
stream phus diversion, and another was for development of
. these small dams in congunction W1th such projects as Chimney,’
Rock or Round valley, and it was my 1mpression that it was
quite comprehensive, but 1t evidently was not to your mlnda:
| MR- COATES@ Well I think’ it was: quite comprehensiveg :
but if it was quite comprehensive, why is it, Senator9 that’i'f'
we:hear,thisrtestlmnay day after day that we don?t~have thef |
‘facts on this, we don't have the facts on that. I just canrt
" understand that. ﬂ “ u | ‘}v -
SENATOR CRANE: wellg I would like to point @ut thaﬁ
these obdections that we have received have been mainly
from the Stony BrookwMillstone, from Hunterdon C@unty, but
that other very competent sources have test:fied her@ in
' behalf of these mzasures and have seemed to back up the fact x
'that conpetent statistics are available on which te make a
start° in other wordss that at this time we have ample ,f,f
 statistics- on which to. at Ieast say ‘this seems feasibleg andv

’then, from that point when they author;ze the progect, thay
o |






make the detailed engineerlng investigatlons which fix the
site of the dam,v,f | o | v'

MR, COA.TES@ 1 ﬁﬁd‘er-sﬂtood *mm the 'ﬁeafihg“la'st miek
"_that that was the way to do lt, 1 simply disagree with that |
v method of procedure, 1 donﬂt think 1tfs sound, o .

“ SENATOR CRANEe" Welli why do yeu recommend that New Jereey
do any differently than the federal government or any ether -

ageney of government? _ ‘ e l

MR COATES° I think Senater, you pay me a compliment
'1n thinking I can answer ail these questions, Iﬁm not an
 engineer¢ But as I see the picture, this program has been
'presented or is being presented to the Legiskature with a let
of things lacking and I don't think that the Legislature should
be asked to enact,legislation of this sort unless yeu»have
mere detailed:infermétidn:aveiieﬁlev :Abﬁareniiy fromIWhatrtt
‘1 have heard unless my ears deceive me, you denvt ‘have allt
that 1nformation available° -It»is~true you - have these
different reporte, but as’ mw. Vanwegen pointed out in this
letter you read thls mormng9 as I underetand it, and I may
be wrong and Would be gl&d-to-be cerrected, there‘havewbeen"
‘no test borings'Made,Lthe eehteurmiines.ﬁhieh‘eppear:teebe‘
significant have not been e'sfﬁab‘iis‘h.{edg‘ and all those things
,I‘think are important befefe Wefbegin7askingithe_beepiebio |

fSENATOR CRANE:} Weii‘ now, letﬂs at least establish
ihis,sif;.that this is a matter of your own persenal
'o@inion;= - R | | |

MR; COATESg ~1.think‘thet‘ihié'opiﬁiénlmey;be,shafed{ -
by others. R R .
- 5






SENATOR CRANE: Yes; but I meaﬁ, so farbas you are
concerned this. is your own personal oplnion and you are
rendering it as a lawyer and as one who is a member cf the
Stony Brook—Mlllstonef Is that correct}

MR. COATESs l.would‘say that is trﬁe_,‘-yes°

SENATORdCRANE:l Now, to enter a phase"of questiening; sir;
that might be in more agreement With’you;rl noted:in abcut the
middle of your report you were}talking.about}Mercerlcoﬁnty as
: nOt'Specificaliy protected, and you are talking about<being'eb1e:
to get water in the future. I would like to ask you - At the
 first hear1ng we had a statement entered on the record by
Thurlow Nelsen of the. Dlvision of Water Policy of the State
and he 1is considered by many to be an expert, and he, himself
proposed that more consideration be given this point.~ I know
that in his statement he said specif;cally that we should think
of the 1mmedlate areas and that they should be safeguarded
r"and since there is no actual language in the bills whlch states
that spe01flca11y, he suggested it as an amendment. I was
trying to find that - page 85-A3; thatts where it starts but
the speciflc statement isntt thereo‘ o |

Would you llke to see that proviszon written into the
bill, sir? , : |

" MR. C@ATESa 1 most.certeinly,WOuldg 'i think}that in
simple Jjustice to Mercer“coﬁnty and as a potential fef
‘industrialvdsers, etc.,fit»shoﬁld be written'in.' I would
like to point out that, I think it's Senate 273, on page 5,
paregfaph 67(a),.states7that the departmentg'meaning<the VVVVV
_ Department of ConserVation}and Economic bevelopment;?shalln
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have Jurisdiction and control over the use and disposxtzan of
a11 additional water made available for public use, pursuant
to this actoeeo.® Now, 1 understood Mr. Shanklin to say;
unlesé IVheafdﬁincorrectlyg that primarily the waters»hereA
would be for the use of the people up north, in the northern .
count1939 before anybody in Mercer County wculd be cons;dered,.
Now,: l may have misunderstood mm9 but 1 think thatﬂs what he
said at this desk the other day.i That being so, 1 think most
emphatically there should be some other prevision written in
.here, and I would likevto:p@int out,that»itls quite impartant o
?becéusé of where sémé‘oflihiébﬂater SPangéiffomw 1 ﬁappén'
‘télliV®zianighétown and I’kn0W that’thé'f1oW tﬁére'df ihe

water is sometimes very slack in the summ.er'time9 and it"s used
a great deal by agricultural interests thereo‘ Sometimes thesef
lakes and ponds are practically drained. If you are g@ing
‘to hava this situations I think it's most importantg not only
vfor 1ndustry but for our farmers too, that these things be
considered and some protective prov151ons insertedo

SENAJOR CRANE Dr° Nelson had in his statement9 “May

1 for amphasis repeat the last two 1inesg sparticular con=
sideration being glven to their present and.futﬁfQJQQCeSsitieS‘
for sources of water supplyo ' with respect to the 1eca1 areasg
1 whlch wauld ‘be the taking amaso _ , ‘

»,Then, too, in the latter part of y@ur speechs sif9 do
you céncéiﬁé'fhat this program, which 1 understand Mro Crook§
will testlfy to, that i.s‘9 ‘the Stony BreokmMilIstone - do you‘
feel that a program such as that i$ on@ which could possibly

 meet the statevs needs?

"17‘






'MR;7CQAIBS§‘ I am'suggesting thie, which I thinkafa
Van&egen wes suggeetinéé;that it.ought'te Bevceneideredot Néw,
”hefe you”haVe'an associatien whieh fof a number of‘years has-
‘been gathering data on waten and the aVaila@iiity’of it, etce,
pfiﬁariiy for‘conservatien'purposesg eresienS and that_seft or-'
thing; vBut there is no reasong_as.I'underetand.it;tWhyvthier
edﬁld'net be developed fufther so that'weter;COuld be used fof
ether purposes which are conceived by this billo Now;‘no deubtt‘
there Would not be the quantlty of water that these bills
anticzpate heing provided in this smaller system of damsg_but
‘1f thlS we re to bevconszdefed possibly cn a wider baeis‘threughé‘;
out the State, it might be ultimately that it would be a very
de31rab1e thing for this State from several points @f viewo- _
You might be able to m;tigate the weter problem at far less C@et
with aid from the Federal Government, yeu certainly'weuldmmt
dlslocate as many people as these plans contemplate, and )
ultimately you might be able to get enough water to mitigate'
the situation until-this five or»ten year program with the
»DeiaWafebis resolved I think we ‘are entltled to look to the
future and investigate these things.

'SENATOR CRANE:-: Well, do you ‘think on an over“=-a1.1 ‘basis
that such a‘preéfem as this’ccuid be utilized'te’the}benefit
of a;etetewwide Watef erdgfemg“in ether worde,‘onrvdesire'td
meet the needs of ‘more potable water supply° :

MR, CTES&‘ I think it should be explored; Senator. I
would not say after study whether or not it would be feasible.,
I don’t know :envot.tgh to tell you that. But I think definitely
it should be explered.f | ' |

!
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4‘SENATOR~CRANE: Now, sir, you talked or questioned the
fact as to whether the proJect~Was seif—liquidatihgiof‘noio
' wbuld ask you, sir, was the B&nhvaié-prdjeétbcr Chimney Rock
or Round Valley éelf—liquldatlng? . |
| MRa COATES: 1 dontt consider myself qualified to speak on
thoée, Senator. I am only basing my‘statement on what_l have |
heard here, what I have béen.tgld about these bills, and what I =
have read, and I'havenﬂt'ﬁeard any tesiimoﬁy here from anyone
‘tO'establish anything but an idea or an opinion or an estimate
that it would be self—nquidating° | B

SENATOR CRANE% But you felt qualifled enough to criticizeg
thbugho.

MR, COATES: 1 certainly feel that I have the right as a
citizen of this State, even if 1 were not a trustee of the
Stony Brook Watershed Association. I think itts just fine
that‘the‘members of the public can come here and you gentlemen
graciously listen to us°  | '

SBNATOR‘CRANE° D1d you criticize at any time the Bunnvalep
the Chimney Rock or the Round Valley pPOJeCt as being not :
self~11quidating? o

MR. COATES: I did mot. |

SENATOR CRANE: All right, sir. And my last question of
yous You referred again to that exberimental paragraph which
s included in the bill for negotiating purposes. It was put
there solely to put the people on notice that we would like
to deVelop é paragraph reiated to rebate to communitiéso Are
- you aware that thatt!s an experimental paragraph and we afef
attempting to get better language?
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" MR. COATES:  1'm not aware-- I would consider that arrfcr*
'the language would be studied Senator. I thlnk there are
various areas hera where probably the Senate would before
thesevbills are enacted 1mprove the language and change itod" 
_VI think that?s the normal course of legislation." -
SENATOR CRANE Did you hear Senator Lance and I debatej
 the subject? ' | _‘ | |

MR. COATES: No, I did not, 1 missed that. S

SENATOR'CRANE?’ Commissxoner McLean enjoyed itOv ' |

Have you any language that you would like to recommend:"
for that paragraph, for rebate ‘to communities?

MR, QQATESs’ Not specificauy° .

SENATOR CRANB:'.All right. Thatls all I nave,,

SENATOR DUMONT: Senator Fox, have yeu any questions? .

SENATOR FOXej No, sire SR - o

,SENATOR DUMGNT°, Are there any questions that anyone desires -
to agk of this witness? - T | il

EX-SENATOR O'MARA: Mr. Chairmin -

SENATOR DUMONT:"senafof OtMara. | L ‘

' EX=SBNATORVO'MARA? Mr° Ccates, were you in the chamber
here when Comm;ssioner MCLean testif1ed? o |

MRo CQATES* No, ‘I wasn!t. o | : -
EX*SENATOR OYMARA‘“ Well let me read you an excerpt fremt"
 Commissioner Mctean's testimony which appears on page SZwA ofj
the records  ' ’ - | o
“While my testimony is ebvi@usly favorable to ;
the provisions of the 1egislation, ‘I do not wish for
the tenor of my remarks. to seem dogmatic., My con- -
clusions are based on: prellminary data obtained in the
course of broad engineering ‘surveys. .  Let me acknowledge

~ the necessity of additlonal 1nformation.. The facts and-
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rigures now available must go through a process
of refinement. Or, to express it as clearly. -
- as possible, we must go beyond the general inquiry
that has led to our present conclusions., We do not
‘have all the data we need to have; and obviously
there are many questions that cannot be neatly
answered at this time., v

"The next logical step is to gather more detailed
information relating to the geology of these areas
‘as well as the amount of land required for the
reserv01r sites and the value of real estate which
must be acquired. Detailed information of this kind
is essential in determining the proper location and
design of the reservoirs and in. establishing ‘con=
clusively their general soundness, As a matter of .
common sense and as a matter of fairness.and responsiv.i
- bility to everyone concerned, under no circumstances
would I be willing to proceed with the purchase of
~land until more detailed fact and figures have been
compiled.™ . S _ v

I take it from the tenor of your remarks, Mr. Coates, that
you are in thorough agreement with the testimony of Conmissioner
McLean that I have Just. read to you. _ ‘ 'l _‘ »

MR CGATES* I would commend him for such a- statement,‘_

EX“SENATOR O'MARA And you agree with 1t?

MR CQATES* I certainly do.

EX—SENATOR'O)Mara@ Agaln let me read from Cammzssioner
McLean's teStimoné;' I'11 go back a question or two s0 that we
can put it in proper context~

" Question by Senator'Crane: .“wa much do yoa’pfoposeiWOuld
be spent for suéh'a-survey?“-‘(Thié queétibﬂ is diréétedfté Mr o
Ritter.) B |
" "Mr, Ritter: It's in the category of maybe one to two
hundred thousand dollars, something like that._ v

"Senator Cranes A hundred to two hundr@d theusand dollarso"

“Mf;-McLeantr Senator, I might add that Mre Shanklin - and
I am not trying to pin George d@wn to an estimateﬂ this is a
W11d estimate on his part, but ‘he threw up the figure of about
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a hﬂndreé;thousand,"
| Did you hear that testimony? » .
" MR. COATES: "-Ne; 1 did not, sir.,- 1 %vaér;’rt he-re;
'EX~SENAT§R O?MARA Have you any reason to suppose
that it is 1naccurat87 o " ' R
© MR. COATES: I have not, no. . |
'SENA‘I“OR. CRANE*I have one fu'rt.her question, :.S'enétbr»l -
pumont. - | ' |
~Mr. Coatés,fl WOnaer'if:§ou5w0qid 1csé‘fajth,;théga"_
in Cdmmissionef McLéaﬁ if 1 read to'you £ Qdeéﬁien'that &as'putfv
to Commissioner McLean hy Ex=$enator O'Mara¢ At’thé cehéiuéién -
of a debate which led up to these very points which he was : |
'bringing out, we were determlning that this survey‘was one
which would normally be conducted after a project was author:zeda
At the end of finding out the cast of such surveys and everym.:'v
‘thing else9 we came back to the original point and Bx=Senater
Ofmara, according to the record, asked this-question* "Weil
: do I take 1t that in your Judgment the information presently v
iat hand 13 suffic;ent to submit te the people the question of
adoptlon of a referendum?“‘ | B
"Mr.'MQLean: 1 believe.$og"v‘“ | 7 o
MR COATBS« I think hets inconsistent. I think further
that the commlssloner is inconsistent in this, and 1 th1nk
 the Senate Would be, in this planning aspect that I 3poke @fo
in 1953 the New Jersey laws on planning were passed and they
"have been of great aid to the State and the municipalities
- since. Here we have a situation where one of the departments‘ﬁ
of the State just ignore through this cemmittee all the locaIV-
'plamningvpeople, and_so forth and_sc_on. 1 think there are
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many inconsistencies and I agree that that is inccnsistent,
'SENATOR CRANE They may be inconsistencies, sir, but,
as I asked you to previously acknowledgeg certaznly the | |
federal'and ‘state programs of record point to ‘the factfthatj'
they more or less péralieled preseﬂt procedufeé ﬁhétHWe‘haveﬂ
‘instltuted on. these dam projects9 and that no further
investigaﬁions ‘were necassary before authorizatian Was granted
or the~$tate submitted it to a referendumo You are'aware of
that? o |
MR COATES, I may be‘WroﬂQ in my‘entife cbncépt'of'thiéjv
but as a matter of putting it to the ﬁedplé of New Jersey,
1 should think that we'audﬁt td haVe‘théSe‘tﬁings in hand'fiféto
1 may ‘be entirely wrong, I'm not an @xpert on these things,
but it doesnvt seem to me to be the part of good sense, Senatoro“
SENATOR CRANEe‘ Well thatts the sense af yeur oppositi®n9°
then, that you would like to have further 1nvestigatiano -
‘MR, COATES: I certainly would.
- SENATOR CRANE3' Thank yeup sir, |
SENATOR DUMONT: Any further questions of Mr. Coates?
Thank you very much, Mr. Coates.
1 will now call on Mr. Malcolm Crooks, Exeé,utiva Director
of the Stony Broek=Millstone Watersheds A.ssociationo l |
- MA L C,O L M 'C RvO OuK Ss Senator Dumont and members
of the Committeem My name iévméiéolm Crooks; I am Executlve
Director of the Stonwarookmmillstone Wat@rsheds Associationo
It 15 as an employee of that erganlzatian ‘that I would like to
read the»followang statement from the Board,of Trustees of
the7stoayfBfobk4M1113£onewwatershads Ass@Ciatiohe
VThe 23 Trustees éréf 'ngm HOpeWeli,>Mfolddhn:Faﬁs@tt9 Mr.






b-FredericﬁﬁgterSQh'and Sol/P6snerg'frém HightStowﬁ,]Mf; Henryf
Coates; from Lawréncévilie,.Mr; L1loyd Cérverg from p:inceténgf
Mr. William Flemmer, 3rd, Mr. Edgar Gemmell, Mrso'Hérry:Hafig
Mr. EdWard'A, MacMillan, Mr. D"avi'd He ’McAlpin,. Mf; I. Russell
leer, and Mro Herbert H. sz,tho from Pennington, Mr.o Har@ld
‘Blackwell, Mr. William Po Howe, Jr., Mr. Robert Jones, Mro
Fred Rasweliler, Mro T, P, R@@dgvdrdj Mr.e Paul VanWégen,’and |
Mro'Ddﬁald'Wbodwafd;‘fromvTituséille,,Mrs Charles Oldis; from
Blawénburg,'lvifo Albert Vanzandt; from Skillman, Mr. George
Drummon and Mr. E. He Wellemeyaro | |
Last Thursday9 Mr. Paul Van Wegen, president of the Water~
7§heds Associationg criticized the lack of}data-in the~Advi$@ry}v
Committeets report, Inasmuch as-Seﬁate”BiIlé'272 éﬁd:273 are
based uﬁéﬁ’thié repbftv Mf; VanWEQQn propefly.quéstioned the 
wisdom of asking the c;txzens of New Jer&ey to sign a check
for a $14 milllon dollar bucket of Water of unknown dimensianso
~He made some positive suggestzenS‘f@r'immediate and 1eng-ragge
programs‘for the full and ecmnomictdeﬁ@lopm&ht»of‘water_foff
New Jersey. | o | |
Mr, VanWegen endorsed two principles which have received
popular approval in this room,~that is§ the developmantvqf
~ Round vailéy to partiéi'éapaéiiy'with Raritan water and the
Aspeedy-édvancement,of commitmentsnlobking'tb the'future use
of DelaWare River water. ‘Furthef;-he"urged a modest pilot
study to test the Sanford theory for -use of $urface and under=
ground water in the sands of the Upper Millstone and South
Jersey areas. |
'Reminding'us that ?Witﬁ.water in scafce‘suppiy we should
no_lbngeriact aé'thqugh it were plentiful;“.hé'said, "the






State should lose no time in enacting legislation requiring
certain minimum standards of water conservation in mhnicipal
and industrial use."

Mr. VanWegen's water policy proposals were highligﬁted by
the suggestion thét the Stony Brook¥Millstone Watersheds
-Associationﬂs existing small dams program be the cecre of water
supply deveiopment in the Stony Bro0k, as wellg pbssibiyy as in
~other areas of New Jersey. ‘

These dams which are being built by the Watersheds Asso-
ciation, the United States Soil Conservation Service, and
numerous Federal, State and local agencies, could be'fedesignedg
in some cases relocated, to fulfill the multi-purpose functions
of water supply, conservation, and recreation., Their economic
justificaiion would be simpler, their disruptive dislocations
" less, and their value to the local area far greater, than with
the one large reservoir which is now being considered.

Mr. VanWegen emphasized in his ThurSday statement positive
alternatiﬁes to the recommendations of the Advisory Committee
rather than dwelling on the numerous flaws and shortcomings of
this report,

The Watersheds Trustees would not have you think for one
mqment that we do not find grave omissions in the proposal
before us. However, although'iﬁ is tempting to pick'this
docﬁment apart piece by piece, inferehce by inference, this
would not serve the Watersheds Trustees! desire to help solve
the water problem. |

Whether it knows it or not, modern society is becoming
attuned to and dominated by principles of conservation,
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psychotherapy and physiotherapy for the mentally and physically
disabledglsocial rehabilitation for the curable criminal, land
and water conservation for natural résdurce waste, and now,
finally, regional planning for community disorders. And so,
for this proposal, we wish to be ﬁan=destructive9 unwastefulg
that is to say, we wish to be completely constructive in our
criticisms,

That ié‘why we feel compelled at this time to call
attention to the remarkable neglect in these two bills of any
integration of the water supply proposals with other vital
-aspects of.the region's growing needs. ._

We beiieve that ény propdsal or recommendation of such
far-reaching consequence as:the development of water supply
reservoirs should be carefﬁlly related to a study of existing
land use patterns and future development potentials within the
affected areas, as well as to studies pr@j@éting and anticipating
future land uses.

The problem‘of water supply - to paraphrase a famous line
of peetry = "is not an island unto itself.™ It cannot be
treated as a separate entity within those areas where it happens
to fall, It is part of é‘complex whole, Any project for
reservoir locations shoﬁld be carefully plotted and planned
for harmonious relationships with other vital institutionms,
not carelessly superimposed - like some tremendous bomb-
crater seﬁselessly wiping out réads and buildings = on .
an unprepared community. |

VThis proposal shows little respect for the affected
’ countiés and municipalities, It heedlessly violates their
necessary sense of integrity and orderliness., How wasteful
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and traumatic it isi It thinks to be a long-range plan,
forward looking inté the future., And yet to those of us who
have dedicated oufselves thesevmany years to conservation and
planning for the orderly developmeht_of our area for gener-
ations to comé; this hasty proposal seems shortsighted in the
extréméo

We prefer to go more-slowly - take time to éolléct the
facts which are necessary‘and to reléte our plans t)vthe |
requiréﬁénts of all phases of the region's needs., A thing worth
doing being one worth doing well, B “ |

Let us list briefly several of ﬁhe specific disruptions
which the affected municipalities and counties may expect of
these proposals,

First, possible dislocations in transportation systems
which must be mended and inserted into alternative sites at
unestimated expense and with incalculable upheaval of present
social and economic values.

One of the most important aspects of regional planning
is that of proper traffic circulation., Major arterial highway
and secondary road systems are incréasingiy fundamental to the
economic well being of established communities and growing
urban fringes. The New Jersey State Highway Department and
our local municipal planning boards have long been developing
master plans for an orderly circulation system keyed to the
ma jor highway and traffic patterns. The Jjob still remains
to correlate all of these, but work to this end is under way.

The Advisory Cammittees apparently blind to all problems
except that ofiwaters has not advanced any solutions te this
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méjor problem, except to allocate a “"contingency fund® in
its proposals, Tﬁﬁs existing roads may‘bé blocked off with
no provision made for the redirection or relocation of traffic
facilities, The municipalities and counties will be saddled
with thesevadditional'prablems if the proposed reservoirs are
bﬁilto | |

| Second, a great deal of discussion has occurred concerning
the promised recreational potential of these reservoirs., This
aépeét of the preposal is beihg sold without sufficient factual
evidence to guarantee it., If these reservoirs are goiﬁg'to be
multipie purpose facilities which will serve bothvwaier needs
aﬁd recreational opportunities, then the questions should be
asked =~ what studies have been made for the needs of this area?
What standards have been established to decide how much land‘v
is needed beyond the actual water level, and where? What
techniques will be uéed to minimize the adverse effects draw-
down has on recreational use of the reservoirs?

As a result of regional pianning studies which our
Assdciation is Jjointly condu@ting with the Rutgers Planning
Service, we haﬁe élready investigated some of these aspectso’
We have made a preliminary study of the racreétional facilities
for the Watershed and the region. We have suggested standards
for recreational facilities based on our studies in land use,
population, traffic, zoning, topography, and water resources.
Serious considération is indeed in order before a maj§r change
in land use is thrust upon any area. Picture the effect of
this sprawling, muddy water reservoir., It is not a temporary
structure, The people in the vicinity will be 1iving.with it
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for géneraiicns.td b@ﬁ@ov lt should be: planned with sarisus |
.thoughtto the futura poténtial f@r recreatlon and other locai'
‘.uses. It should be so designad and land should be so- purchased
that it offers maximum benefits instead of haphazard benefit3'11 
'for this increasingly important aspect @f living.- .‘u‘, |

Third water is becoming mare and more ‘the econ@mic base
to our communitiesa Waterg its abundan@e cr scar01ty9 i .
'regﬁlating;xin avlérgevmeasure, our population expansian, indus=
tr1a1 expan51on9 and all the facilities which g@ to make up a
wellubalanced and- happy communitye It appears ‘that very little :
‘.consideratien has been given t@ the overwall effect ef this_
proposal upon the ecen@my of the immediate vxcinity of the |
proposed sites. - :“ | | |

In planning for water needsy letﬂs Iook into the crystal ,' 
’ball projecting the future rather than stick our heads into the i
mud @f the-lower Rarltan, YES, present water needs of the Newv
BrunswickﬂManville areas far axceed the requzrements of the
less p@pulated upstream areaso But will todayvg ratio hold
'true 25 years from now? All indications point t@ a rapidly
'1ncreased water ‘demand in the Upper Millston@ Watershed,
along the Pennsylvania Railroad along Route lg‘and mear'
nghtstown. This area is ab@ut two‘per-cent urbanizedo. AL‘
,-neighbering townships East Brunswick, grew 3@0 per ceni 1n‘
nine years. | | 4 | '

At present the St@ny Brcok Watershed is only 7 per. cent
urbanized. This irea is immediately adjacent t@ ‘the cengested
'Trenton area and is witnin 20 or 25 miles @f a number @f ®ther
urban devel.pments which are 305 AO and 50 per cent urbanized.
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“This forms the pattern for many of our rural areas some 10 to
20 years ‘hence. Thoée-ﬁﬁnicipélitiéé of mdsﬁﬁrépid”gr@wth in :‘t
'the past decade will be supplan%ed by others which are only now
‘3showing these signs. _ P v f

A few moments ago I referred ta the regional plannlng
‘ Studles which are being carried out by our Qrganizatzon and ,
Rutgers-Unlversity,_ 1ncomplete as they naw ares they indicate f 

a very serious watep problem developing in the near future in

- the Stony Brook Watershed because of an anticipated raplé

population grcwth as well as. some indugtrial development in
this area, “ & L |
"Ybﬁ will ndtefon ﬁhé £0hihgvdéﬁsi£y:m§pVof our'Miilstdhé .f
Reglonal Studies that I have put up ever here beside Senater
Crane that there is a zoned industrzal strip (the gray area)
which travels along the Reading Railroad lineo It is n@,mare"ﬁ.
.001nc1dence ‘that thls zone straddles the Stony Broak,> Thé:
1ndustries which will move into this zone will be best served
”by the mult;-purpose type raserveirs ‘which' were suggested by L
the Watersheds President last Thursday rather than by a
<larger reservoir some distance downstreamov \ v
'Iﬂwould like~to qu@%e'from»the section 6nVWatér in'the,
prel;minary Pr@gress Report ef our Millstone Reglenal |
;Planning studies whlch was issued last Februaryu "In a time
when the urban areas of our State are clamoring fer Water
and reservairss 1t is questianable how much attenticn W@mld
be paid to the future needs of an area such as. the Stony Broak
‘or the Upper Millstone Watarshedsg which have yet i@ reach
‘a peak demand° However9 th@ area lies in a pattern of rapid
developmentg vThereris a strong.neeﬁwforian analysisv@f the






-water potentlal aad supply of the area s0 that the interests of
the watershed may be pr@tected in a iangurange progfamo"
We did not know at the time this was wrltten h@w close

the clamoring was to be upon uS.

‘In céﬁéludingathesé remaféég the Trustees of the Watefsﬁeds
Aésoéia%iéﬁ wish to make-thr@e‘s@ggeétidns for your éonsideﬂatEOng

e Any pr@p@sal for water retention reservoirs in the
Raritan Watershed should be a part of a thareughly studied
llntegrated plan for»the full development @f»th@ water potential
in this reQidn° | _

‘“Specificailyg WQ‘urge that pre-design investigations be
madevat‘the‘vafioﬁsvrQServair $i£és in the entire basin before
any one site is approved for comstruction. For only after
this information is at hand can a truly integrated and well=~
planned devel@pment of Raritan water be accomplished., The
relative merits of‘the”sma}le?'multiple%purp@se dams and the
larger ones should be weighed at all 1@¢a£10ns by sﬁch studies.

We would like to quote from a paper recently given before
the State Planﬁing‘Conference'by Lts Cdlgn@l John Lee of the
Philadelphia District Army Engineers, You are no doubt aware
that Colonel Lee is in charge of the cdﬁpfehensive Delaware
Rivér studies., He said9 "Unless there is already prepared a
basin or watershed plan to which to refer, the errors of the
past will be repeateda The planner will project a fising
| demand curve, determlna when and by how much exxstlng water
resaurces will become inadequate, and engineer the dire@t
sélﬁtion, The>¢ompeting uses\fdr.watér will be largely
ign@redg since the machineryof basin-wide cagfdination is
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not normally availébleo ‘I‘her’efore9 water supply planning is
nearly always plecemeal and evraTlc,' ) |

"In any such procedure, Wasta and ineffic;ency are |
inevitable. Water supply structures are usually either too
big or too small, and too ear;y}a@,too late., But, far more
importanﬁ to the local economy, since these Strﬁétures are |
designed and built for Juat the one purposeg they preempt a
dam and reservoir site that normdlly can also be used for
many other purposes, It has been found that multi»purpose'
 structures make it possible to'spread the cost of their con-
structlon and operation over a. number of purposes s0 that the
charges on water supply are . 1essened, Thus the usual water
supply plan not only is too costly, but also takes for its own
~use an irreplacable natural resaurve that should belong to all
the people for all compatible uses,  Although water 15'1t331f |
a renewable resource, dam ahdkbeéérv@irhéites}are not, They'
are the critical~resourée that must‘be conserved and used
wisely for tle highest and best purposes for the benefit of
mankind, _

2. Water supply investigations should take their proper
place with Raritan‘regional plaﬁning studies which weuldf |
include an inventory of traffic circulation, pepulation growth,
economics, recreation and all the other important aspects of
community’growth and we11=being°  The. approach which the Watefw
sheds Association and Rutgers Planning Services héve found
workable in our pilot study is the type of abproach we feel_
should be used in any program of such far=reaching con=
sequence_as‘that of‘water'sﬁppiyo
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With bills §=272 and $-273, the citizens would be asked to
vote on a 1lf miliion dollar bond issue for a water supply
proposal that not only is laCKing in essential informatién but
‘has been made, it appéérs, with little'regard fﬁr other -
essential éspeéts of the growing population ahd»industry in this
région. ‘» | |

It has been estimated that for a cost of about $500,000
a comprehensive study (the type'that should be made) can be
accomplished for the Raritan Watershed., This study wouid
relate water supply, traffic, population, recreation, and |
economics., It-wéuld pfoducé a sﬁrvey of present ahd future
water customers in the various éectiogs.df this region. It
would give a better idea of whd is going ﬁo pay for the water.
now and in the future, where the water will need to go and
where it should be developed., We might find that our customers
are not so much around Elizabéthtown,vLinden; and so forth,
but around the other futﬁre industrial andvresidential areas
developing in other areéso

It is possible with such studies to more nearly direct
thé future growth becaﬁse the planning stadies are implemented
with capital expenditures by municipaiities and by the State.
Thé Highway Department builds ihé reads which are planned aﬁd
are needed. The municipalities zone,areaé appropriately so
that the watershed and other values may~bebprotecﬁed°! All
this is a part of a comprehensive planning study. The
reservoirs would fit into such a study and woal&,be thereby
much more sound economically, physically, as Weli as socia11y¢

Inserting a comment, it has been estiméted alsoc that this
study could be accomplished within a yearﬁé period;
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The légical group ‘to head such a study is the state
'Pianning Bureau which is within the Department of Conservation
 and Economic Development. | |

3e As the Trustees see it;,the need for speed in this
matter of water is’mgst3ﬁégant in the temporafy»“fréezing”}of
>gocd potential reservoir sites.

The lands in the several Raritan basin reservoir sites
are daily receiving capital impb@ﬁements that in most'Cages
could just as easily be located elsewhere, In looking back to -
earlier water supply pr@posélé”we:note With dismay thét-se@eral
of the best reservolr sites are no 1dnger‘feasibleo Mushrooming
population and industrial gfcwth on these lands make it N
impossible to ever reclaim theée sitesffor water storage.

In his reportboﬁ the watér’fésoufces of the State éf:NeW
Jersey in 1922, Allen Hazen proposed a reservoir at the
Jjuncture of the North and South Branches of the Raritan., This
is the location of the TAMS! North Branch reservoir., The TAMS
Report recommends a 10 @rVBé‘biliieﬁ gallon storage reservoir
at this site., Hazen's Rep@rtvcailad for one of BOO-billian
gallon capacity, covering L8 square miles, Mr. Hazen's
water supply for the Raritan would have been 1,500 m,éodo
in contrast to the present &ay.expected development of about
300 m.g.ds 1In 19229 Mr. Hazen foresaw a problem, and we
quote; "to find a market for so much water." The same pfobiem
coﬁld'éxﬁét i@day if we still had the reéervoir'sites of 1922,
Let!s save what's left. |

" But how? The first step 1is id"make: the basin-wide
investigation which caﬁvtheﬁ be drawn into a master plan for
Raritan water supply development. Then weitil kﬁow the |
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reservoir sites that are needed aé»wéllzés‘their dimensions.,
The second step is to tie down these areas = freeze them ffém
: additionai capital improvementss This can be a problem. We'll
suggest four methods ‘= théfé a§é“doubtless others., First would
be the adoption of an @fficial stata drainage map which would.
include demarcation of the. P@SGPVQLF ar@aso This would operate
in a manner similar to the vexiémng.?_?.afficial map" legislation.
It would legallyidedicaté7th®’1én& inv®1ved te this particular'
use, Should any of the landowners involved wish to make
capital improvements, the State would have a year, or some
other specified time, ianhiChitofdeéide whether to release the
land so held or puféhase it at the mérket va1ue; ‘Since there
would be relatively few wishing to make capital improvements
under these conditions in‘any‘ORQ yéarg»acquisition of the
properties would be at a slow pace. Of course, at the time
a reservoir is needadg-the State‘cOuld immediately purchase
the acreaée involved. | |

A second meﬁhod»might be tofpurchase flowage easementsg
in other words, pay rent to landowners in the reservoir Sites
in return for the privilege @f h@iding those lands f@r'Water
storage u$e. Thirdg and cl@S@ly related to the latter Schemég'
is to option the land for a short period of time, perhaps 5
years, wath the idea that during that interval the State would
find a means of purchasing all of the sites, A fourthyprpw
cedure would involve the cooperatian of the mmni@ipalites
with the water study group and the State‘by local zomning ;
zoning to prevent additional déV@lapménﬁ from coming inte
‘these vital aré353‘~The municipalities could give this 00;
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opération if they were assured that these water'prospects_éréh"
good forrihem;" ; P e o
But whatever method is used to save these 1rrep1aceable
“water storage sztes, letﬂs ‘be on wﬁth it. We»have no time
to lose.‘ Is it unreasenable to ask for money NOw for these
investigations that are needed - and to ask that as soon as |
'these studies are complete t@ devise some way to immediately :
1stake out a claim on the economical and desirable areas? Can
we afford delay? | : | » | o
Senator Dumont and members of the Committeegvthe Water~
sheds Trustees appreciate this opportunity to brlng before -
you our thoughts on the development of water supply ‘in the
Raritan Basin. | - ‘
Thankvyeu,  (Applause) | » 7
SENATOR DUMONT: How many dams and reservoirs does your
Assoc1ation contemplate ﬁn the area where this ‘map 18? -
MR -CROOKS° we ‘not. only contemplated them, we had them |
actually designed and located nine of them° That dqes‘ngt
:mean, @f caarseg thatﬂthere necessarily wouldsbe hiﬁé-orfémy
other speczfied number, should they be red@signed for water
‘supply. There could be three, four° there could be fzfteen
or eighteen° We wouldn“t know until studies were madeo
~ SENATOR DUMONT: What would their size be? -
MR, CROOKS* It would be according to thelr 1ocation _f'
and the Justiflcati@no We found that in justifylng these -
'reserv01rs‘for conservation purpeses andﬂior local water
sz:n.pply,9 the sites where they were located cmuld take various
size reserv01rss but in arder te Justify them on a beneflt‘
cost,ratiog theycould be pgetty much only one size, mere or,
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less, So the size woﬁld be”dependen£ upon thé,justifiééti&n;'
 1f water-supplyvis ingluded, they-cOuld_beiconsiderablyllafger
than theyvnow'aré; ‘A few of the sites which are now héidlfor
» our reservoir sites could not be used for water'supply,_as i.
-see*it;'they would be tdo-smaiip‘;On‘the’Othep-hénd, Sevérai' o
vadditionél areas whichHWa~couIdgﬂétﬂuée fofV@urfsiteschuldv_
possibly be used now, usihg wéter‘suéply as'an additionéi .
-justification. _ ‘ | :
 SENATOR DUMONT: ‘Did you 'pi'athhesa sites just for con-
servation or for water supply? 4 R
MR, CROOKS: ‘We planned them for most all uses except N

downstream,water-supply, We had no information ‘that would

lead ﬁs to'bélieve that downstream users were willing to pay

a périion of the.cosf;v 1 Would like to- point out, by the way,
that in ‘the 566 federal legislation, these dams for water control,
as these dams are, may be built with federal cost sharing on
them, Should additlonal local benefits be des;red for water
-supply or for any other reason Which would make their size

1arger than for the specific purposes of the Act, the lecal
people would pay the entire cost of the additlonal storage
capacity required, 1In cher words, the'federal government
will‘cost-share on the original size of thé dams,'which_wili»'
suit the federal governmentﬂs Sp@CiflC&tiOHSQ Then the 10c61 
1nterest - in th;s case it might besthe water supply 1nterests =
vwould pay for the additional storage capaci_ty° _ , |
'SENATQR‘DUMONTs Weilglnowy wouldn't the fédéral ngefnment
“only contribute money. for ihe purpose of conServatidn as
distinguished from water supp1y2 A
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MR. CROORS¢ Flood.controlg de=silting, and conservatien,
yes. They would not cost-share on water supply itself, but
water supply can be built into these reservoirs and take full
advantage of the federal aid. S@vthe cost to the:peoplé
‘interested in water sﬁpply would thereby'be lessened,

SENATOR DUMONT ¢ W611; thém9 on a smailef'scaie this would
be the same idea so far as federal participation is concerned
as we hopé to get'the"federal government involwved in the Delaware
River,

MR. CROOKS: I would say so. There is a little difference.
The federal government, as I understand with the Delaware
River, is cost»sharing=w yesg‘fdf one pufpogeg isntt it; and
ndt_for;two purposes. That!s true, '

"SENATOR DUMONT: As i ﬁnderstand it, the federal government
considers water éupply peculiarly'a state problem; therefore,
they donit participate financially in that.

MR. CROOKS: That would be a very good simile.

SENATOR DUMCNT: To what extént would the federal govern-
ment actually participate in that? Have yom-eVer figured it
out on a percentage basis of an'aétual amount basis?

MR. CROOKS: On-the reservoirs Whiéh-we have planned aﬁd
located, it was roughly a 50=50 split on the éveréall project,
the dam construction and the conservation and land treatment
that Went along with it. It's a two-base program - treéting
the land with consérvati@n'péactices and’building reéervoirs‘
to supplement these, It was about a half million dollar
project. The federal gavérnmentﬂs share, 1 would say, would
be about $21,0,000, but that was on the basis of the dams
that we could justify alone. I couldn®t say what their
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cost-sharing would be on a new scheme such as‘we prdpbse,

’SENATOR DUMONT: | How long has your'Association‘been in
existence? Is it eight years as one witness said?

MR, CROOKS: That!s right, eight years., We have been
'officially‘incorparaﬁeé‘for sixg”but-We”have‘been in existence
and working for eight, garfying on research as well as other
projects.,

SENATOR DUMONT: Has y@ﬁr Associati@n bought anyyéf_the
land that you contemplate in any of these reservoir sites?

MR. CROOKS: _We'have purchased no lﬂﬁdo’ That is part»of
the local contribution to this reservoir program, that the
local people would contribute the land for these reservoir
sites, lfmight'say thaﬁ we'have»had'tremendoﬁs'cooperation

. from the l&ndoWn@rs/@n this very point, but no land was
purchased. |

SENATOR DUMONT: Do you believe that on all,these’fesefveir
sites that you contemplatag‘you can get the property owners to
Gontribute‘land?

MR, CROOKS{" 1 am not suréo If wyou increase the $ize~of
them, as they would have to be imcreased for water supply,
I'very'much doubt that all the lands would be contributed,

I can foresee ihat'paft of t@em,wgml& be contributed, beCauSQ,
‘you see, when there are smaller dams distributed throughout
the countryside, there are a-l@tiv of local benefits and the
people there realize that they'afe local benefits aﬂd they
are willing to give up samething‘im return for thOSe'benéfi%su

‘Twould like to add, by the way, that the first dam
which was to haVe been built, and origimallyAwas'SIated fef
construction sometime in April or May and then because of
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govemment red tape it was delayed a little bit, was to have been
cost-shared by'the Howe Nursery pr@pérty and they were going to
pay a portion of the expense because they wanted the dam a little
bit-larger than the fedéral gdvernm@nt wanted it so they would
have irrigation benefits, So there was a point in Whiéh this_very
way of &éé&ii@@ﬂtfib@tibn for additional benefits would have been
carried out in our particular program. | |

SENATOR’ﬁUMONTg You think\the pfoperty owners would be
much more inclined to provide some land if this were an
alternative to the Stohy Brook proJject?

MR, CROOKS: My g@@dngsss'y@sg_beéauge their houses would
not be covered. None would mntribute land if their houses
were going to be‘COVQPedg'but if you can still live there and
you have additional bensfits from this water in your back yard
and it is desirable fr@m-yéur standpointg 1 would foresee that
thére cduld very-easily be coocoperation on that point,

'SENATOR DUMONT: Did you say the first such dam was -
actually planned for May?  Of this year, you mean?

 MR¢vCROOKSg' 'Thatﬁé right. Our plan was to let contracts
in late winter or early'épfingp around March or April,vand I
would judge that some six weeks after the letting of contracts,
four to six wéeksp construction would begiho It came down éo
that the first of May- I'11 tell yous the day ihat this thing
broke of the Advisory Coﬁmiﬁteeg I was going‘to go out and
get signatures on three of the easements that day, Contracts
were to have been let by'Merger Cmunty = they were cooperating
with this = around the first or second week of June,

SENATOR DUMONT Did'ydu contemplate\thrOﬁgh‘these dams
and reservoirs the supplying of water to any other abea of
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the State than the local areas involved?

MR; CROOKS: No, except in so far‘és it would regulats
stream flow, There would be some stream flow régulétian
possibly in these, We'did offer to local municipalities the
proposition of water supply, but they did not feel tﬁgﬁ'they
could afford at this pafticulafvtime to pay for the additiénai
cost of water supply, They'knew they would have water needs
coming up but they had just had a‘s¢hdbl bond that thgy votéd
on and they were deeply in debt and could not see putting out
additional money this year for building water supplies for the
futﬁre; They thought it was desirable but’they could not see
putting out the money at this time.

SENATOR DUMONT: Well, then, these communities at the
present time have enough watér supply in’your:area to take
care of themselves? | |

MR, CROOKS: Barely, An@thér thing, 1 notice by the
papers, is restricting undué-waSte in water.this week, - You
see, and i would like to point this out, whatever has been
said about the cémparable quality of Stony Brook water with
the quality of water in other sgcti@n§ of the Raritan Water-
shed, itts very clear that the quality of our Sténvafoék
watérvis»quité lewé.unfgftuhatelyb We are sorry. 1In addition
to paying'for‘water supply, these municipalities would éiso
have to put up quite elaborate tféatment plaﬁts for tféatiﬁg
this water, The soilé in our area are highly colloidal,
clay. It stays in suspenéi@n a 1ong time, Lét"s not fool
ourselves that this lake on Stony Brook that isiproposed
by the Advisory Committee W@ﬁld be a cryétai clear lake 3ikg
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1ike weléée'in the mountains. It wdu1dvnd£g‘it would be mﬁd&y,
Look at Lake Carnegie, Thatts the type of lake it would be.
It's low quality waterg-buﬁ itﬁs_watef and it should be
de@éiopedo‘ | »N : |

SENATOR CRANEg First of all, Mr. Crooks, I would certéiniy‘
like to compliment you on the very fine pféééﬁtatiéh'herevthis‘
 morhing° 1t certainly supplements that which Mro‘Vhﬁwegén gavé
us last week and, so farfaé‘I am concerned, I think it shows
a very comstructive attitude, But there is one thing that I
would like to ﬁoint‘outg“JW@ statements by‘Cdmmiséioner McLean
were read . to a éfeviouSKWitn8339 én&'whilefhe’félt‘thé first
'one was good9 he said the second one was inconsistent, which
more or. less points up that this depends on which side youﬂre
Oon. In your second.paragraph you refer to principles which
» have recelved p@pular apprcval in this room. Would you tellk
me if there are more than Just Princeton and Hunterdon County
people in the balconyo |

(Applause from balédﬁj}fj »

MR, CROOKS: Now you dontt krow., I have seen invtha'past'
others from other sections; but I don't know about today.

SENATOR CRANE: Well, most of the applause has come when
yéﬁ good people'havé made your pfesentafiéné; and I doubt
that there will be any applause for the bills, |

MR, CROOKS° I would like to say that we have L50 ﬁembers
and we certainly hope that our membership is supporting us, |
all the trustees in thereo

SENATOR,CRANEs Weﬂll concede thata

'Ndwg sirg further on in your talkww
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MR. CROOKS&' May 1 comment flrst of all on the: remarks
'which yeu f1rst made, that there seem& to he an incansistency

‘xn Commxssioner McLeanVS»remark56.~I was here-that»day'and -

- from reading to Mro Coates these statemzntsg they did seam in=

consistent. But in thlnking back to Commissiwner McLeanﬂs
 testimony9 I believe those statements may n@t ‘be incensistent
because on the one hand9 he sa;dg'"Furtherfstudies are}naeded
before the land is aéqﬁifedﬁé'in”tﬁé-éecdnd‘paiﬁt he ééid that
‘there was adequate iniormati@n for the passage of these b1llso
Isn?t that ‘more or less what ‘he said?

” SENATOR CRANE: That's true.

MR CROOKS&" All righto They are two different things.-

:  He7Was saying’that these bills sh@uld be passed»and then

_investlgatiens made, and that is what the Assoc1atien is
objecting to. We feel that the bill should not ba put’ out
[fof a“éublic‘ﬁote. We feel it is V@ry dangerous for the water

supply of New Jersey for this bill to be put out for public‘
vote without this detailed lnformatien firsto _

SENATOR CRANE: Well, this we drew~fr@m'MTo'Coatéso i' N
MR CR“KS»« Yes9 but z,tﬂs the procedure there. A‘i?e.
we goingvto have the bill-before or after these facts?”:} _
sENAToR CRANE°' Wellg againg Iﬂll ask yeu ‘then the samew
question? Why is it necessary for New Jersey to go further
'than any federal or state authority has gene befere? _
A MR CROOKS°' Iﬂm very glad you asked that qu@stien e
, because if yom had notQtL ‘would have made cqmments on it
before I left the éiand,‘ . |
-séNAToRVCRANE:' Why?
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| MR;~CROOKSWI Tha-paacedﬁres df'tha fadéfal‘governmaat,&asf'
we have experienced tham and as I have undarstood ara thisorf‘
a*A prallmlnary survey is mada, That would campara to tha TAMS'-”
f,Report. Then, if these pralimlnary sarvays Lndicate that
;whatevaf it is is desirablag tantatively desirable, than
furthar investigations are mada and monay ia appropriated at
that polnt to carry out those 1nvaatigatlonson In @ur case,'we:

fapplied flrst in 1954 to tha Federal Govarnment - flrat to

. the Department of Canservatian and Economic Development and

the Gavernor and- got their approvals and than to tha Federal
‘aGovernment for a Watershad protaction praJact to leok Into

"tha problam and posszble\salutien. That approval cama early

in 1955, I'gﬁéSé'it WaSW-tﬁan;'at'the time &hat approval was Tf"h

giveng money was set up for the State Office @f the Soil
"Conservation SVrV1ca in New Brunswick to send a work plan e

party out to our araa to make on=thawground investigationso

They also hired Bconomistso thay brought in the U.S° Fish and,‘»

wildlife Servzca" they brought in the U, S. Forest Servica,
;although the U S° Farast Service was a partvaf thla, actually,a"
Sevaral diviszons of Commissionar MCLeanVs own department

came out on. the ground and made ferestryrxnvestigations ”f”‘i

a:_what were the fonat problems? what could be done abeut ‘them?
The same thingrwith_wildlifa,‘,The countiasﬁware;considared,k

‘the s‘di-‘-l c‘anlser-{ratfibn Districts were part of ’vistv ‘in :'vf‘act, o

,there are 17 different federai and state and 1oca1 agencieS"'?

liwhich have coordinated 1n this thing° Thase engineers mada f(ff"

| on~the~ground survayS° they spant from about May to Octobar,:a"

as I recall, and than went out in the fiald a few timas laterf






for spot cheéks on infofmation which:ghey wéré not sure of, and
it Waénit antil February, from abqut ApfilFOr May to February;
that the final information was available upon which the final
work p;anfwas drawngb Thén that work plan, ¢6ntainiﬁg the |
specific information,‘which,included:twoffoot contdur‘intérvals,
/by the way, analysis of the soil of each one of the dam sites,
and other pértinent'infofmation,;was submitted to Washihgton,‘
to the Soil Cbnservétibn Service, tO’thé Army Corps of_Engineers;
Department of Public@Health; Welfare, eté.,jby way of Com-
missioner MCLeén!s,Office and the deernofls Office9 receivihg
approval of‘both"offices, and then, in Augﬁst.@ﬁ'last year,'thé
money was appropriated for ﬁhe firsf year"s‘projeCt whiéh,Was
to include two dams. Wé~anticipatedfthenyOu1d bevbuilt before
July 1st, 1957, but we would only have gotteh;ené‘stérted-asiit
4turhed out,'beforebduly l,»1957a\‘That'was'the procedure. That's
different from the:procedure in this case., -
SENATOR CRANE?x,}That's on your dams.
| MR CROOKS: You spoke about _th.e: f_edéral government |
procedure.v‘And that is federal govefnmeni.prOCedure,‘-‘I‘would
also like to po;ni-outVMunicégél procedure;‘ahd 1 dontt hévev
personal expefiénée here but I have talked to municipél. 
engineers on this, When'municipalities-wani to build a
highway or dam or any otﬁer engineering projeét? they havé té
ge£ pre-design information and soﬁnd‘engineéring eSiimates
based on these pre=-design studies and Submif them before the
boend companies'will take up the bonds, Sometimes now, the
bond companies even requife thatfactﬁal bidé be made on
the structures. But that is mos£ often ndt'true;S‘But with
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muriicipal bondihg, and you mentidned municipalipﬁedédﬁres‘dnd_
federal procédures, so 1 want‘to discuss‘them - ﬁhe'munibipal.
proCedure has to include theée pre;désigns We are.aSKing‘for@
The federal procedure, so far as we know it requires pre-
deszgn information as we ask foro . |

SENAIOR-CRANE@ L_am'unawaré as to Wheﬁvl_askedlabout'
municipal procedure. - | , R ‘ . o

MR. CROOKS:E When you were talking to Mro Coatess 1 believe°

'8ENATdeCRANEz The point that 1 wanted»to ask about was on
tﬁe Delaware'River.' An investigation is now being cenducted by
the Us S, Army Engineers, by a person who was mentioned here,
' Colonel Leey and‘he‘reported last week that after cqmpletion
of a survey being conducted there, whichIWas'apprdiimately
the samé'inievery‘réspeci as the TAMSlsurvey,vthe7pfoject;~if
it reCemmendéd itéelf;,Was cénSideréd authefized byftheiu; S,.d
fﬁovernméﬁ% and, afiéthhat, fufthérdmoré intehsive surveys
would be madea My point was that the federal authorization was
somewhat comparable to the. people's approving a referendum
here. ‘

MR, CROOKS: | May 1 ask what project that was? |

SENATOR CRA.NE? Tock's Island.

v}MR. CROOKSz vI do know, let ‘me poxnt out, that the Army

Engiﬁeers'haﬁe made surveys of the Delaware Rlver, the 1ast
one écmpleted‘in 1955, Just a month or two, as 1 recall,'prlor
to the flood - a preliminary survey,-such as in the TAMS
Report = and they indicated that flood hazards did not warrant
flood control structures on the Delaware., It is very evident
then, that‘preliminary surveys can_be-quxie-far ‘from the truth,
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because they immediately then wgre authcrized to go 1nt0 full‘
fstudy of the Delaware Basin.; In other words, Flood Diane
completely reversed the informatlon which they had on this
prelzminary data., ,}J ‘
| SENATOR CRANE: Well,‘they'll release no information on
that 1nvest1gation up there in the’ Delaware beyond thezr pre=
liminary reperts The final report won't be in until 1959¢
?But leaving no stone unturnad, both Senator Dumant and 1 havel'
inv1ted Cglenel Lee to come here so that we may»have thssevfacts'
vsét before us. . I believe hetll be here at our next hearing.

MR, CROOKS: Fine. R B

1SENAT‘R CRANEf Now; yéﬁ‘talk, éééiﬁ éarly:iﬁlﬁéﬁi pre-
-sentation, about the value of these dams to the ‘local area,<
far greater than the one large reservoir which is now baing _
considered. Therefore, you ‘are talking to the point of local
heheffts. Hava you at any ‘time considered state's needs in o
dmplementing this program as far as it states? ' |

MR, CR@@KS* You maan, at what time have we contemplated
thato We certainly are now; yes., 'v

 SENATOR CRANE You are now. But when did you first
think of that? L | . o

MR, CROOKS: rWefhave}béén”thinkiﬁg-ef %héfSQSny Bfeék“'
) WaterShéd as a part;off%héJMI;TS£6neiandv in the leng distant -
| future,'as a part of the Rarltaﬁ; ‘The Raritan has been seme-;
what remote from our thinking, I'11 admit, and we- may ‘have |
Vbeen 1ncorrect in that but eur immediate concern first of
all was with the Stony Breek and then With the Millstone,_}v

~and lastly with the Raritan. Yeu see, we didntt.gomeﬁ;@ any v






special conclusion at any spec1a1 timz on our br@ad thinking
because we foresaw a lot of problems, se far as water supply,
industrial development population expansion, and such, we g@t

. together with Rutgers University and have been develaping for
_geing on’ two years now regional planning studies of the Millw- -
stone Watershed which, by the way, is 300 square miles° Ybu can -

see some of the results of these studias outside in the

.’ icorridor and-on this map here, vWe have been trying te colléct

‘information which wmuld tell us what the pveblems are now and
what we might expect 1n the way of problems.' YEs, sir, we j'
have been tryzng to relate, and we hope in the future to
relate, our thinking and our problems and our water supplyi 
to the broader picture.vv | | | IERRREDEC
=SENATOR CRANE: You were talking first of all in terms ”;
of a local proJect because you sald the people would donate ﬁ:
land to it._ o ,. S o
MR. CROOKS° Tﬁatjs‘fighia:vThére éfe all iyﬁes'of1'
.benefits from these. There are local henefits which are

cloest to us because they are right in our . back yard and,

' ~naturally, those are of high concern to us.

SENATQR CRANEoA Well, that was the primary interest
”beh1nd your investigatiens, the lecal benefits, Was it not?
MR; CROOKS~ Behind our planning studies and investi-‘
'vgation, or behind the dams which we ‘have built? N

SENATOR CRANE° The small dams that yon are talking
about. o |

MR. CROOKS: - Small dams? Yes, because they had to be’
‘justified locally. I :






SENATOR CRANE: |

How many acres afé'g@ing-tdjbé”ﬁékén in~£n¢39*§mall dams
that you propose, sediment dams? |

MR, CROOKS: About 120, actually flooded acres. It's a
little higher than that, but itfs about 120, “

SENATOR CRANE: That's the total taking area?

MR, CROOKS: No.

SENATOR CRANE: That's the water area.

MR. CROOKS: That'isfthe"ﬁater area, 1 don't recall the
taking area. There is a figura buﬁ_lﬂdﬁnﬁt'recail it,

SENATOR CRANE: Well, since-itfs beeﬁ'suggested that we
are looking for raw water firs£~®f éll_t@ help‘maintain the
flow and, secondly, to divert SQmeIWaterg,perhaps to render
it potable, how much, in'terms'of millions of gallonsg_woﬁld‘
be impounded behind these nine dams? |

MR, CROOKS: May I answer you in this way? It's not
fair, I do not believeg'to_judgé_the€WGfthinés§ of the nine
dams on our maps to the possible development of water
resources and other side resources in the Watershed for future
dams, because the design of these dams was for one set of
purposes = the design of Waier'suppiy‘reservoirs in addition
to this would be of completely different design, would take
in different acreages, would be in different locations, and
would be of different sizes,
‘ SENATOR CRANE: Yes, but you were talking of &eveicpment
 of water for other uses. | |

MR, CROOKS: In getting around to that, I can foresce
very easily the full'dévelopmaﬁt of the water resources
in the Stony Brook by the small dams program - by a small
dams program, not the present one that we have.
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SENATOR CRANE: Would you have any tdea as to how many
. dams you would have?

MR. CROOKS: I‘de'ndt;f I“womlé‘anticipate there might
be two or three on tné main ét@m@ém?tVS-just an anticipatidnj
we would have to get engineers on it to find out, plﬁS'SOmé
supplemental small oﬁesw 7Né@;-té.QﬁSWQf'ydur qﬁesti@n
directly as to the number of’millidm gallons stdred9 1 do not
know, First of all, we have béén'tﬁinkiﬁg in terms of acre=-
feet, and we would have to convert acre-feet into millions of
gallons, and it's a little difficult to do in the head. But
I recall one of our reservoirs has a capacity of about |
0,000 gallons. That!s not much but on that pafticular site
it could be enlarged éonsiderabiy;

SENATOR CRANE: Welly would it be rather a rough guess
that it would také about 540 of these dams to equal that
which is proposed as the Stony Brook Reservoir?

MRo CROOKS: No, because we are not propdsing that the
dams - this7term "small"™ is perhaps confusing us. Wé are
not proposing that the dams which we think should be in=-
vestigated for water supply would be nearly as small as the
ones which we were able to Jjustify under one sihgle justi?
fication under the federallgovernmentﬁ and ﬁhat.was silt
control. They will have to be larger; they will need to be
largefg'ahd they can be larger, 1'm sure,

I would like to emphasize that small dams may not be the
answer, We don't know, But on the basis of our eight years of
working in thisiareag of réading widely on these problems, of
meeting with others, nati@nwide as well as regionally, on the

~
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same problems at the.watéfshed conferences and soil conservation
conferencé59 etc,, we havéfcom§ to the conclusion that this
type of program might very.Wéll*be the most feasible and the
most economical and the most desirable.

SENATOR CRANEg For your‘éfeaa

MR, CROOKS:  Noe Toﬁt‘a_m}a

SENATOR CRANE: 'For the State?

MR, CROOKS: For the State as well as for our area. lf‘
they can provide for the full develoPment of water resources
in our watefshedg youvcanft_gétféﬁy'more than that for benefits
for the State, can you? = |

SENATOR CRANE: Well, you couldnl't do it with nine sediment
dams . o m

‘ MR,  CROOKS: fYou‘misundethénd me, sir, We are not asking

that our nine dams thatg%é"ﬁavefdn thé books be used. They may

be in different 1ocati@n§‘ehtiféiy; ‘Some of the locations, I

‘am sﬁbe$ wouldLndt'be-ﬁsed for water supply. We are saying

that'there'are a lot of smailerAsiteﬁ poséibie on which dams
and reservoirs could be built, both off the main stem of the

Stony Brook as well as on it = each one of a smaller

dimension but with possibly as much or more total capacity,

I don't think it could be more because that capacity, I think,
is fuily developing the-Water.thétﬁs running down the stream,
But certainly I think therets a'vafy good possibility that the
water held behind these several reservoirs could be equal to
the one large one.

SENATOR CRANE: How about the cost factor?

MR, CROOKS: I ‘have talked to engineers and they will not
stick their necks out and say.it Will'cQst less or it will
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cost more, or it will cost the same., They don't know. But

you might think at thevoutset that thé'Cost ofnseveral dam
structures would be more thén one 1arge structure, ’Thats I

do not believe is necessarily true., One of the large costs in

a reservoir is‘the spillway9 the concretevworks and thejiargér

the damvthenlérger.that concrete work =:not by arithmetic but
almost by geometric prégression; furthermoreg the‘land acquisition
on the smaller sites would be cdnsidérably less because there
wbuld be 1¢ss disPIacementD'lass interference with the highways,
and so forth.

.SEI\I’A'I‘OR CRANE: Well, now, that brings us to the next
point: You used the termiconcerning these reservoirs % yoﬁ
likened them to bomb craters and that>they were carelessly
superimposed., Now, would you agree, sir; that water storage
is rather an inflexible problem ratherlthan flexible?

| MR. CROOKS: In a way, in a'meashfe& Yéu‘a:e pointing.
- out that there is one plébe that a water supplyvreservcir
couid go in in the Stony Brook watershed and}therefore,with
'ho matter how much planning ahd looking to‘therother phases
of commnnity needs, ihat reservoir necessarily has -to go in
that one place@ I would not agrée in the Stony Brook water-
shed necessarily. There are several places where a reservoir
could go. In .:t‘ac:wi;f9 Mr, Ritter Conceives that this dam could
go half a mile upstream @r'downstreamg;w | |

'SENATOR CRANE: That's correct.

MR. CROOKS: That the volume may vary from nine, and
other éngineers make it eight, maybe up to eleven or twelve
million gallons, That!s a lot of difference. Then this -
proposition of the smail dams raises the question that ﬁhere

-
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ﬁery Weil may bé'othéf Sité§,  We kﬁoW'théfé aré'othef Sites,i
actually, so I do not agree that there 1s necessarily Jjust
one site in the Stony Brook or 1n any other area. They-arer
restrlcted and that is what I point out in the last part of
 th1s paper, that itﬂs so 1mp0rtant that we take and reserve» ,
the best of our sites as soon as we- know where they are. Bu? )
let's.findv@ut-where they arejfirstmbefore we reserve land.
’ SENAfOR CRANE° ‘Mr;’cfdoks; I am overleoking purposely
‘the human factor involved in this question9 so I d@n't want
to be tagged thh 1to But I Would ask you,'sir,ﬁwhlch is
jea31er to locate --a home, a utillty, a roadway,.or a o
reservoirz or, conversely, which 1s ihe hardest to 1ocate?
| MR ’CROOKS= Generally speakmg9 and you have to speak .
.generally on that question, a reservoir siteo'_‘ v‘ L f |
- SENATOR CRANE: You. talked of highwafys "a 1 ha‘ve before T
‘me the only map that I have for ready reference this | "
‘morning, the Stony Brook Reserveiro; On page 179 at‘shQWS'ﬁﬁé"
'prqposed Stony Brook Reservolrg of é@ursag obliterating quite |
a few-roads, I couldnﬂt tell how manyg I would have to ceunto
But of thoseQ which are key roadways - 569? | ‘: -
MR, CROQKSg Itﬂs according to ‘who you are and where |
you live. " ~ ,b . v “v - | o
SE.NATOR CRANE: Wellé, yes, but 1 meanpf'f"‘ S
MR, CROOKSm You are speakzng from the county plan,_ 
SENATOR ‘CRANE Nowg.in your estimateg_SLrs Would it be
’absolutely necessary to restore every single r@ad '?.:,.‘rl,em‘9 or
are there some secendary roads of llttle use? |
MR& CROOKSg I hope that you will ask that question of
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Mr. Edward Mount when he is on the stand,_the engineer for ,i
: Mercer County. 1 would not care to ansuer'that question,:‘
|  SENATOR CRANEﬁi we11, 1!11 defer the questiom.i .
MR CROOKS» I would say, yes, 569 is a maJor highway.w‘
Elm Ridge Road which goes parallel to the main section of
the reservoir, and is crossed it shows here, in three different
spot5° it may be crossed only in one --itﬂs according to which
'map you use-- is a key roadway for the people of the area,
and the one go:ng from Pennington to Centerville and out to-
'MOunt Rose.- Those are the maln key ones.; But the picture J
sz would like to leave is this' People living~1n Pennington"
: and people living in Princeton travel back and forth, as do"
' peopleA1n;Hopewe11.and=the~surrounding_areas.- When a=bombfbfi'
shell is dropped and a{oraternisvobenedsﬁp; wetll say,'SuChga
- as this, their circulation patterns must be changed necessarily
con31derably unless those roadways are again rebuilt., Theirv ;l
'g social patterns may have to be readqusted - many patterns. -
You ask which is the most difficult to locate of these
Vvarious things - utilities, highways,‘reservoirsﬁ e’l;co-'-~
Naturally I answered that a reserv01r is.} But we are not
vstarting with a blank map, we are starting With a map on -
 which utilities, roadways and houses are 1ocated. c:‘ fr"x'
SENA.TOR.CRANEe 1 said we were overlooking the human
factor; r - v. . e
"‘Now; again,vl repeai:that»yonjhaVeisaidithai thesedwere.e
'oarelessly'snperimposed°din'other“words; ihe'reserVOirfsite
was. set down on a map, thereby being carelessly superimposed.
'-De you think that any state government would ever so oare-

1essly superimpose such a thing as a reserV01r without
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'vincurring the obligation to restore major routes?

”MR»'CROOKS@ “Not without wanting to do sa. But could

Vthey? 1 dontt knowo,

SENATCR ‘CRANE: All right, Now, were you here when

'Senator Lance and Commissiener McLean were talking about this

preblem of rebuilding the roads and building bridges across?
© MR.' CROOKS: Yes, I wase | .
SENATOR CRANEw Do you remember that Senator Lance breught‘
up the point that he felt this could be reconciled if we saw
it in terms @f the difference between duty and obligation, and
I was trying to draw from him an amendment thatvwauld be ;
acceptable to hlm which specifiad that it was a duty of the

State to restore cerfﬁin reads and to build bridgese Leok,- e

' would you be satisf;ed with such an amendment?

MR CROOKS#' Noof Letﬂs start from scratch° Wﬁo i#ﬁthé'
State? The State is us and the peeple outsideo- Wh@fié°péyiﬁg';

for 1t7 ‘Us.o We d@nﬂt want to have a reservair built by us

or by the water users, whichever the case may bes'and then ‘
i the relecations paid for by'uS» tet?s-figure first of all
where the reservaxr sites sh@uld g@ so that the minimum of

"conflicts w111 be established and ‘then the people of the

State will be paying a minimum amcunto I wish 1 had Colenel

Leets~paper here with me., Colonel Lee cencluded his remarks |

. last May 22 befere the planners by asking a question° If

C@mm1ssioner McLean acquires a stretch of stream and xts -

'boundaries for a future reservoir site and then9 at the same‘
‘time, the Cemmissioner of state Highways has on his master

v'plan a highway crossing that siteg will that highway cross
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through the valley or will it be crossed by a bridge? Colbnel ‘

Leercontinued, "Until the problem is reselved of whether or not

we are going to plan 1n a cmordlnated fashion,." Then he says

 that the people will be paying for the crossing in the Valley

and then later a cr0531ng @var the reservcir. And 1 submit
that that is'a verys very thought~provoking question to me..
We want to minimize disruptions; we want to minlmize costs,

1 think that can be done but it cannot be done by thinking

"we want water, letts develop water, put a reservoir h@re because

it's ‘the best piace," We must say, "we want water, we need
water, 1et's look at.the possible solutions to our water

problems in relation to. the overwall plan of the State." Ahd

1 would like to point outs sir, that the Department of Con=
servation and Economlc Development has been spending considerable
amounts of money, 1 understand in the neighborhood of maybe
thirty or forty thousand dollars a year, in developlng,a state
plah for a period of fifteen t0'twénty~five years.'vlt does
notiappearithat the Advisbry Committee consulted with this

state plan from the‘récammendations<whi¢h they here put forth,

- If they did, I am sure that their reservolrs and their alle=

gations to upstream communlties would have been different
~SENATOR CRANE: Wells now, by the way, there is no one

sitting here at this head table who dreams 6therw1se than:

that the people are supreme in»this.State. "So 1et's have that

settled once and for all," o | | | B 3
MR.,CROOKS: 1 did not mean to imply that, sir.

‘_SENATOR CRANE: No, but you were talking about thé people
béing the State, Ndw, overlooking- the matter of self- liquida-
tion of these proposed projects, let us say that theoretically
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 this water 13 te be paid for by the userss isnﬂt that true?

1MR CROOKS° It is suppcsed to be and should be,

,:SENATOR CRANEs - That"s trueo:

'-MR4 CROQKS» And I thlnk it can be, ' RN 3

»fSENATOR*CRANE@ The next question 1 have is, do y@u believe
that these bonds as they are soldw‘ de you feel that that is

taklng your money and my money and spending it for. something |

~on which there is no return?i lsnﬂtvthat rather confused._j”

thinking? | - | |
MR’ CROOKS& 'I am tfying'to*think Of a cbmparisen,' I can-‘
buy a bucketful of marbles and I think I am getting SO many

marbles, maybe I dontt. get that many when 1 pay my m@ney. }1 

am essentially not a gambler,‘ I want to anW'before 1 pay’

.my money how many marbles Ivm g@tting. I want to know bef@re

my money is jeoparized.» Now9 it may b@ that my money will not
be jeopardizeda Maybe the tax dollar will not have to go into
these reservoir sites, 1 don!t think it has to. But as leng
as it's Written into the bill the way it is, there is Jeopardy

that my tax dollar w111 go. int@ or mxght go into these resarvoarév

I don't want to be buying the most expensive or the next. mest

expensive ‘1 want to be buying the best solution, o .
SENATOR CRANE Wellg weﬂve labored rather lang to estab= |

lish that all these various procedures involved here have Qeen

'¢more @r less normal and ‘have adequate precedent, There is a
»question that many have raised as tm self- liquidation. But,f

'have you ever known of any large reservoar that was ever

built that was completeiy paid for When it began operationr’
m mmm«wm |
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VSENATOR-CRANE: TherefOrggitjs normai tQphhiﬁk'thet we'afe
"going'to have to take eare eflthie by some,boﬂding programeend,,
out.efethe'moneys that:are'realized by the éale of these bénds,'
these Vafioﬁs'things éueh‘as roads and,bridgeéfand_the,liker
will be taken care’of? theﬁ’itfs”for us to get in'here:the
péeper amendment that would satisfy people that these roads would
be rebuilt and the bridges would be built so that there would be
| no great 1nterrupt10n of traffic flow° Isntt that correct?
MR. CROOKS: Yes, but I get back to my other point agein;
These may not be the best‘sitee. I do not kndW’end 1 dOn'ﬁ
think the Commiftee kndws.. Before we have a bond issue, letﬂs
- find out what are the best sites and their dimen31ons.'v |
SENATOR CRANE:" Well, then, you also brought up recreation
‘which was discussed quite'atiieﬁgth with Commissidnef'McLeen and
theh again with a gentlemaﬁ from Hunterdon, and I wouldlask yous
Isntt it true that we think mainly in terms of water‘When we
éreﬂbuﬁldiﬁg a reservoif?kv |
MR. CROOKS: Naturally. I would hope so. B
SENATOR CRANE: Wells'now; if we heve"a‘reeervnir aﬁdrin’
time cf drought;'which is'more important; the water, or the
recreational facilit;es? _ | , \ |
MR, CROOKS: You are askzng a question agaln which haSjﬁ
no yes or_no answer. Of course, water is pf‘prime concern.
But may_I feitefate my queetiong' What techniques will be |
used to minimize the adverse effect draw-down has ch the,>
reéreatiénaleuse of the reservoirs? eThere>aré'téchniqﬁese ”
| SENATOR CRANEe Wére'you hereAwﬁen‘they discussed'the
tiﬁee the reservoir will be downf"Wé disgueseds-i believe,
cycles1at one'time, that there ﬁould be'a very infiniteeimal
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drop one year'out ef five, a modemﬂedrOp in the reserveir leval'L
once in every ten years, and a great drop once in every twanty.
At those times I thlnk we wnuld ‘be" happy that we had a '_
reservoir, though a low one might present an ugly pictureofﬁ'b

| MR CRO.KS* 1 was here when that testimony ‘was glven énd
it conflicts With the information which we got frem Mr. Roy

| Ritter when he and Mr. Baumar ‘met with the Associatien on May

10th, Mr. Ritter read from the recordw "In 1955 it is estimated
dam ‘

the Stony Bf@ok/wouid have been drawn down ezght feetd These
are from his calculatiens. .3195uu~ eight feet. " ‘Before’l,éo

| fﬁfther; I”woﬁld liké to remind you thati bééides the figurésf

Which you just gave, ‘'a number of the proponents said ‘the
average draw-down would be abent five»feet. ‘Is ‘that not
correct? "1955 - exght feety 195& - eight feety 1953 - 15 feet,
1952 - 2 feet; 1951 - 2 feet; 195&-- four feet, 1949 —«15 reet;
19&8 - lh feet; 19&7 and 19&6 are also 1& feet. | L

Mr. Ritter did not continue on down, except he Jumped to
1932 - 1 do not know the intervening years - but I would ‘be ff
interested in knowing.‘ In 1932 = this was en the tape and I
had a little.difficulfy in listenlng to it, but 1 think it'was
32 feet in 1932, 1 Will stand cerrected. "in 1931 - 13 feet
and 1930 - 28 feet." | ’

He further said that he would estimate that an average  -
draw-down m;ght be around 8 feet, He emphasized that you

cannot say there will be an average.draw«down beeause no year'”

is .an average year.

SENATOR’ CRANE:" That's true » but over the years we do have o

what are called "cycles,“" ”
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MR. CROOKS: That!s right. The average here, by the way,

of the figures he reaa'rs‘i3~feet, 3Wifh’anianiﬁetér,“i-wéntv

“around the 150 and the 140 conteur line on. the contour maps
on the state geologic contour maps Which were on the ground
surveys, by the way,~ And there-are inaccuracies here,_varys

‘possibly of gourse, ‘Bﬁﬁiwfth éjtenxfeot:draw~déwg,}aﬁd iﬁisw_

'vaVéfaQQS 13; there would be approximately 625, or we wiil say

in excess of 625 acres exposed. I do net want to dwell on this"

'point because I doth want it te detract from the tsstimony

that the Associatzon is giving, Wthh we ‘hope will help in the"i

solution of water problems in New Jersey. But this point

'which you Just raised has been kicked areund here and 1t has ._>7

‘not been settled in my mind what th@ draw~down Would be and

the effect upon recreation.b

SENATOR CRANE Well, then, my last question te yeu, sir,
and then Iﬂm through~ Even in its drawn-d@wn state, which of
course when itls drawn.down represents,the dry;peni@d, perhggs
a»dfbught,'isﬁ;i<it”trué thét*é’iafge.reséfvoir'wéuld st111 >

hold more water than your small dams would have in them at .

' that time? ' we are considering State's needsg net Princeton,'

or other communitlesq
MR.-CROOKs- I wmuld assume, and agaln 1 can't say for "
sure because ‘the studies havenlt been made, that with a |

cemparable draw-dewn in the small dams, the comparable area,

, even perhaps more, sir, would be exposed° But I wculd like

to p@int out also that the exposed areas would net constitute
more or less a selid block., In the case of the prop@sed
reservoir on;the'SicnypBrook, the;large-one, the 1argest.
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pofiion of the draw-doWn would be in the ﬁeighborhood of
Pennington. | - ;

May 1 be excused for just one second to gei a map?,'

SENATOR DUMONT: Yes, surely. - |

MR CROOKS: (Indicating on map) The fed area‘is the'
portion between the water levelg est;mated now, that is, -
the portion between the high water level and the take line,
»The-black’pertiohvof the ﬁapfis estimaping what an eightwfdef .
draw-down would be. It would expose about 500 acres by fbuéh-
estimate, And you will notice, sir,vthat the area I just' o

pointed to is'Penniagtong» The largest portion of the drawfe'

| down, exposing mud flats;IWOuld'be”adjacent to Pennington,
which would be a very undesirable thing for that cor"nmuni‘vty.,ﬁ
It's a very high-class'residential neighborhood,fwe feei;‘
Peﬁnington;and the local Hdpewell Townsﬂip commt;nities° Now,
the draw-down in these smail‘dams Qoald"be.scattered throﬁghaut
the -céulntryside', Some of it would expose mud flats next to
houses, I am sure. It would have to. On the Other hand;'a:'
lot of it would be out next to hayfields and cornfields, which
is quite another matter, - 7 | |

SENATOR CRANE~" Well, thank you very much.,

-1 have been asked to ask you if you have any conception
as to the number of small dams that would be . required in your
program. » 7

MR. CROOKS: Well, anything I would say would be Just a
cbnception. I am hesitant to answer that because we have not
made studies for that purpose, 1 sald before, itts possible'l
rthere wbuld be two or three on the main stem. 1 plcture
‘there probably wouid be one for the Elizabethtown Water )
o E S 61 . :
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Company which has originally made invéstigatiéns; There_might"

very wellbbe one at the site of the present reservoir, or at

‘Hunts Mill Dam, which is above Carter Road, Route 569, Or

there might?be éne7invsomé'dther réach;;maybe farther down
téwﬁrd'?rinCetbh;'méybe‘farther up; I'm’ndtfsufeQ Then thére
would Bedsuppiemental onéé.toithé side., I would.picturevthat
the Hdne&'Broék area would receive one Of:thesé fesefvoifs'
and it's the 1argest of the tributafies. You khow, ahythiﬁg‘
from four u§ to fifteeﬁb-,probably’hot the higher nﬁmbér;
though. AR R o g
| SENAIOR DUMONT: - Any further'qgestions,of Mr;'Cfégk37

'Thank.youFVefy much, Mf;»cf00ks¢’ I think we will now

recess for one houf'for'lﬁnch,'sp>Welli start about five

minutes after two.

-(Applauéé);

(RECESS)
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AFTERNOON SESSION

SENATOR DUMONT: Mr. Crooks, would you take the o
stand for one question, please?
',MR,.CRQOKSg Yes, sir,‘,.'

ASENATOR'DUMONT°‘ Mr. Vandeventer has a question he

would like to ask of you.

MR. FRED VANDEVENTER, ‘Mr. Crooks, you went to some
length this morning in explaining your stony of the small dams
on_Stony Brook.. In the TAMS Report and other reports wh1ch |

’have been submitted to the Legislature'at various times there

was also mention of'avrathernlarge dam on Bedens Brook at

: Rocky Hill. 1 wonder if you would like to comment on the

possibility of a series of small dams 1n the Rocky Hill

‘viC1nity which might augment,the series of small»dams on.

Stony Brook amd make a comparison with ‘the proposal in
the Senate Bills under discu3510n | . ) -
: MR. CROOKS° Yes, sir. The dams that we have been

talk1ng about that might be possible to serve multiple

- purpose, including water supply in the Stony Brook - I o

certainly would hope that that $ame idea would be thought }'

_of wherever water supply is thought of 1n New Jersey It

might not be as likely in south Jersey but in the P1edmonti

area, and that"s the section that we ! re in, it certainly,

'Ivthink is a distinct possibility for the whole Piedmont

section. »It should not be. everleeked. The topography

o the soils, the type of drainage area, the slopes of Bedens

Brook are ve;yvmuch the game as Stony-Brer{ So}I should






suspeci that the same proposition coﬁld hold true in
Bedené Brook, in Neshanic, in many parts of Hunterdon

and possibly a few sections in Union County, Mercer Couﬁty,
some sections of Middle§ex and Somerset Counties.

MR. VANDEVENTER: Then it would be a possibility that
by combining the Rocky Hill Reservoir site, which has been
pretty much excluded from any-ccmgideraiion, - by Cmeining
Bedens Brook and Stony Brook they @ould get a Water sﬁpply
equal to or superior to, in quéntity, what is proposed in
the Stony Brook dam?

MR. CROOKS: Yes. As I tried to point out this
mornih99 while we don't kmow.what can be developed in the
smaller reservoirs, 1 would foresee that'we‘should develop
nearly all the potential water resources in the Stony Brook
area with these small dams, else tﬁey may not be justified.
The same thing should hold trﬁe.in the Bedens Brook area.

I would like to point out that the reservoir in the Stony
Brook, as with the reservoir in the Rocky Hill area, are
not idéal reservoir sites. It was pointed outy, I think the
first day of testimony here, that the TAMS Report itself
says that one disadvantage to all of these sites, except
poSéibly Spruée Run, is that a large portion of them would
'be shallow and marsh&n That does hot make them ideal sites
for water supply because of the drawdown involved. So
since they are not ideal sites, every opportunity should be
taken to look at all the possible alternatives to the

development of water in Stony Brook, in Bedens Brook and






similar areas. 1 think it could very well be that the total
quantity of water developed fOFIWater supply in these'twé |
reservoirs could be the same -- in tﬁese'two systems of
resérvoirs couldlﬁe thevSame-of nearly the same asbthatv
propoéed by the Rocky Hill reservoir and the Stony-Bfoqk'
Reservoir in the TAMS Report. R
| | SENATOR CRANE: Mr. eroks, isn't it rather true,
though, that here you have alreadyfmeniioned-three‘sités whiCh
are known as small dam sites on the Raritan in the TAMS Survey -
Neshanic, Stony.Brook and Rocky Hill ;.and wouldn't you, | |
therefore, be imposing this smaller dam structﬁré to the
detriﬁeni of future development of supply‘in terms of ten
billidn gallons reserﬁoir'sites which the State needs?
| : MR CRQOKS;‘ I am talking about th1s proposal of
small dams for State needs, as well as local needs. The
purpose of developing these small dams is not to develop
them primarily for the local areas, it is to develop them i
- primarily for the local and state'area. 1 don't want you
to miéunderstand me. We do not waht these small dams
- built 1f it wal not serve the funation ‘of the state needs
These small dams should be bullt only if they do serve the
functlon of the state needs as well as local needs.
SENATOR CRANE“I Well your origlnal test imony thls

’morning, you were talklng of additional water supply
beyond your sediment dams as more or less a secondary featﬁre,
and hia state project, of course, water éupply,rraw Water| 

and maintenance of flow would be the prime object.
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MR. CROOKS: Yes, insofar as the justification of

that port1on of the reservoir which éﬁppllés'hater-supply;l,

It would not be the prime:cdnSideratlon‘of that portion‘of

‘ those reservoirs which do not supply water for potable or l
’~for mlnlmum stream flow: regulation 1 would like to p01nt v,l

out that the Stony Brook-Millstoné Watersheds.Associatlon o

is a grass roots movement.: It started with 26 people. 'In 7
about 3. years it grew to about 160 people It has now

grown, as I mentioned before,‘to ASO It has not been

‘superimposed from the top down' It started to grow from the

bottom up}. It started to grow in the Stony Brook area.

It has grown and expanded to. 1nclude parts of Bedens Brook oo
and the Upper Millstone Watershed. ‘We arg llkewlse growing

in the scope of our thlnking,from local problemé*to'water

problems in Bedens Brook and in the Upper Mlllstone and;ngw
in the Lower Millstone and yet we are. contlnulng to\ér@w,;i
our’th1nking is continuing to'grow to 1nclude state ﬁeéds:»'
insofar as it relates to our local problemg. ‘ - ,
SENATOR CRANE: A superficial eXamination of this
last proposal, ‘about the utillty of very small dams on thé
Bocky Hill»site, looks as though you are proposing the

ntilizatidn'of several ofrthese major'sites,to accompllsh{

‘oﬁe,purpoéen,and that is to.find(the alterﬁatlve to the  :

complete de#éldpment of Stony Brook. Isn't that true7' L

' MR.‘CROOKS° Could you rephrase that qaestion7f'

I dldn t quite understand 1t.

~SENATOR CRANEz'VYes.V You have in this latest sug-

gestion by Mr;lvaﬁdevénter.mentioned,three sites;that werer>
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Spec1fled in the TAMS Report, ten billion reservoir sites or
thereabouts, as related there to the State’s needs. You have"
talked of these small’ dam programs this morning relative only
to Stony Brook. Now, Mr. Vandeventer“s proposal is that if
~ the State perhaps needs more water that we could also develop
Rocky Hill the same way, and you added Neshanic to be |
developed the same way =--

~ MR. CROOKS: And others. | |

SENATOR CRANE: @Hﬁi*others.‘ But at the saﬁe time-you'
are tending only toward the goal of replacing what would be.
in Stony Brook if it'Were~developed to ihe ten billién Qallons
_reservoir that was proposed there.

MR. CROOKS: What I am proposing is this, that th1s
Aidea'of-small dams - smaller dams we should say. Let's nct
say small dams - smaller dams be studied along with the “
large ones; It may be that the bést thing for the Stony
Brook Watershed, for thé Bedens Brook Watershed, amd for
the Neshanic River Watérshed,,might be a large dam. We
don't know but neithérxdoes'the.Advisory.éommittee nor
anyone else,that‘we know of. This is_a‘proposal which we
feel is rather’unique énd should be studied and has a lot
of'basié in fact to maké it a possibility. We don't say,
instead of bﬁildiﬁg this one reservoir build these others;

- we say, let's look ét béth, let's compare:and build the best.

‘SENATORvCRANE: Well, you don't know, however, how
much water this'wﬁﬁld»yield for State needs? |

MR. CROOKS: In the development of the plans or
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the development of the 1nformation, from looking at ‘these “

various watersheds on - the basis of studying them for possible

: utilization, on the basis of smaller dams, prime con81deration

must be given to the amount of weter supply that. could bei“

developed by these small dams.“lf it is insufficient, if it is
considerably less than would be developed by one large dam, N
or is considerably less than could be developed by a medlum’
size and. several small size dams, any kind of combination,.
then let's take the proposition which w111 give the maximum

water yield considering, ‘now, other aspecte, considering locai'

‘needs, considering local disruptions. You will note on this

map that there is an"industria'l zone. That could best be

served, as 1 pointed out in my paper, - the Trustees, rather,

pointed in the paper which 1 presented - that area oould be

~ best served by a reservoir upstream from that. There ien'tv o

enough groundwaterr there to supply theﬁ.. It's a‘matter oi '

500, 000 gallons a day per square mile of water yield That

Cwill support about a family for every two-thirds of an acre,

average.} You get variations from that but that“e the
average yield for groundwater. The groundwater-supplies are
going to be short in the Stony Brook watershed, as they will :

be 1n Bedens Brook and similar watersheds in areas of

_1ndlstrial expansion and 1n areas where there is a population _‘

expan31on. So, 'you need to look at the State needs andf

part of the State needs is the local Mercer County, the3

local Hunterdon County needs. The State needs do not

,compriee»only - and I don't want to infer that you are
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‘saying this = but théy don“t inc1ude’@n1y theirivér'wn-ihe

1ower Raritan Rivef wateréhed needs of the industriés or

,the municipal1ties down thereg'

SENATOR CRANE:v But yea w;ll need water. } _
| »MRQVCROGKS: There and upstream too. And 1 tried “to

point out;this morning‘thét tﬁe pqpﬁlatiOﬁ and industrzal;,'
growth is coming in thé Stohy»Brook and the Uppér Miliéioﬁe‘
'areas,fitﬁs’cémiﬁg fast. Maybe - 1 don“t ‘know what Mr. Agle
will give in his testimoﬁy this afternoon but he is a o
Member of the Association, we-have.been talking with him 9ver
the pasi years, and he and Herbert‘Smith andlatﬁer people; 
who have been stﬂdying this population and industr1a1 growth’
and the various changes that are going on in our State,vsee
this change, this rapid growth in the&e mere unpopulated
areas. And as far as State needs are concerned,’we need to
look to State needs now and ﬁxthe futur@ both. ‘

SENATOR.CRANE° Wellg the point is that the State"
can only be satisfied with the 1arger reservoir.

MR. CROOKS°. I beg your pardon? You say the State

-

' would only be satisfied -=

SENATOR CRANE: The State“s needs could only be
satisfled with the larger reservoir.»

MR. CROOKS° I couldn”t agree On what basis de.‘

you say that? that ‘the State”s needs could only be smpplied

by the 1arger reservoir? o , -
vSENATOR CRANE: The State“% needs - if we took

your teStimoﬁy of this.morning, relative to Stcny Br@ok,"
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and yoﬁ pinned it down, you didn't know yourself how many
small dams it would take, but using your arithmetic and

your schedule there it would take many, many small dams

to develop the water that is needed or will be needed |
within three years. You have heard peoplebsittimg here
talking in terms of tén and twenty million gallons a day,
~and I don't believe that you eouid divert ten to twenty
million gallons a day from these 9 dams that you were talking
about. That's why 1 say it is relatively true that the

State needs larger dams to take care of the developments.'

MR. CROOKS: Senator Crane, 1 think you still mis-
understand me and I am sorry that I have not made myself
cleér°7We are not proposing the 9 dams which we now have-oﬁ
our books as water supply dams. Let’s forget the 9'dams.
Let's think that we are looking to other_possible alternatives
which would be better for the local area and at ihe saﬁe time
serve the State. The number of dams does not m;tier, or
matters very little. What matters is the socialjdisplacement -
I am not even rating these especially in order éf importance -
social displacement, inierruptionu with traffic circulati@ﬁs»
in social patterns, we are concerned with State water Suppl§
needs and in local needs - that may be irrigafion, that may
be fire éontrol, that mayvbe reéreation, that may be all
kinds of things. Now, these dams that we are‘proposing,
we don't know how many there are but we see no reason why a
'étudy should not be made to see if an eqﬁal amount of water
could come from those dams as would come from the large -

reservoir. Why does it take a large reservoir to sﬁpply
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water?

qo‘million géllons a day rather than séveral §maller ones?
SENATOR CRANE: 'Well,rby your formula this morning,

how many small dams would it_have taken to supply that much

MR. CROOKS: I dom't know and we can't know until

'stﬁdies are made. »Let”s‘not try to solve the problemlbefére_'

we‘have thé informétion TheVStﬁdieé'mﬂst be made to find

out if the smaller dams are possible and will supply the

10 million gallons a day or whatever the Stony Brook Watershed -

will produce But there is no reason at all why these small
dams, as we see it, can't produce an equal quantity of water
as the one large dam, and be in a lot greater harmony with
the needs'and the desires of the local people. It can serve
both the local people and the State“s needs equally Have
1 gotten this idea across to you that Just as much water can
come from the. small dams as can come from a large one?
SENATOR CRANE: Let's call it a standoff. I dogﬁt
think you have impressed me and 1 don't think that I have
reached you with my question, :
Now the last thing 1 would like to say, sir, reiative
to Rocky Hill - You talked about the TAMS Report and you |

‘talked of the paragraph in there which 1 cited the first

. time that 1 spoke on the very first day, about the over- a11,

you might call it, crit1c1$m of the small dam program as
to the~type of water it produced as ccmpared‘to the water“
that would be stored in-Chimnéy Rock or R@und Valley.

Now, are you aware that Rocky Hi11‘i$ the only émall dam
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location to which this CPiticism of maréhland'wasvSpecificallyi
had? .
| MR. CROOKS: No. I would like to refer to the TAMS
Report, if I may, ~ I see yoﬁ have a copy theré - I believe

it says and 1'11 paraphrase it but I think it is very close,
that the disadvantage of these water supply reservoirs,
on-stream reservoirs which have been éuggested in that report,
are,with the exception of Spruce Run, shallow and marshy.‘vl
don't think it related only to the Rocky Hill one. I think
it related to all of them except SpruéevRun.

SENATOR CRANE: That's the general paragraph 1>was
talking about. However, in a specific description'of each of
the small dam sites; Rocky Hill was the only one to which
they appended that descriptﬁon of the marsh area.

MR. CROOK: Yes, but lest we forget; that is a
preliminary report. They did not have actual contour lines,
close contour lines, to tell. When there is a fall of 8
feet in the Stony Brook Reservoir and if our figuresvare
anywhere near correct and they are as near correct as can
be had at this time - with an 8 foot drop on the Stony
Brook Reservoir, when there are about 500 acrés exposed
that means that there are 500 acres that are less than 8
feet deep, yhich means mafshy area.

SENATOR DUMONT: Senator Fox.

SENATOR FOX: Mr. Crooks, may I just ask a few

questions for my own satisfaction. You are the Executive
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Director of the Association, is that correct, sir?

MR. CROOKS: Correct.

SENATOR FOX: I see. And you have been for 8 years?
Is that correct?

MR. CROOKSS No., I have been ==

SENATOR FOX: For how long?

MR. CROOKS: About two and a half.

SENATOR FOX§ About two and a half years. And are
you an engineer? |

MR. CROOKSs I am not an engineer. I have been trained:
as a Biologist and a Conservationist. I have hadfagticﬁltural
engineering training in school and I have had a small amount
of engineering experienée in the field. ,

SENATOR FOX: I see. Then I take it that the technical
data that you have supplied us with today has been proVided to
you by those who have made a technical study of the matter?

MR. CROOKS: Yes, from the information whic<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>